
 

 

Agenda Executive Council Meeting February 27, 2017 

Date: February 27, 2017; 3pm EST 

Location: Embassy Suites, Lake Buena Vista South, 4955 Kyngs Heath Road 

Kissimmee, FL  34646 

Meeting Room: Magnolia A 

Conference Call (904)512-0115, Conference Code: 412463 

 
Call to Order .................................................................................................................... Sharon Bock 

Roll Call .............................................................................................................................. CCOC Staff 

Approval of Agenda and Welcome ................................................................................. Sharon Bock   

1) Swearing in of New Executive Council Members…………………..……………………………….……Joe Boyd 
 

2) Approval of November 14th 2016 Council Minutes ......................................... ...Stacy Butterfield 
 

3)   Treasurer’s Report .............................................................................................. Stacy Butterfield 
a. Financial Statement (Audit) CFY 15/16 
b. CFY 16/17 Monthly Financial Report 

4)   CCOC Plan of Operations Update……………………………………………………………………………...Ken Burke 
 

5)   Status of Peer Group Review Study……….………………………………………………………..Stacy Butterfield 
 

6)   Report from CCOC Committees  ....................................................................................................  
a. Executive Committee……………………….Sharon Bock 
b. Budget Committee………………………….Stacy Butterfield 

i. Case Study………………….Ken Burke 
c. PIE Committee………………….…………….Tara Green 

i. Financial Analysis WG…Don Barbee 
d. Legislative Committee………………………..Carolyn Timmann 
e. Other 

 
7) Update on CCOC Organizational Study………..…………………………………….…………………..Sharon Bock 

 

8) Update on Clerks’ Role in Collections………… ……………………………Sharon Bock and Ron Ficarrotta 
 

9) Report on Clerks’ CFY 16/17 CCOC Trust Fund and Revenue Trend………………………..….John Dew 
 

10)  Update on TCBC Issues…………..…………………………..………………………………………........Ron Ficarrotta 
 

11)  Other Business 

 



 

 

 
FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS 

CORPORATION 
 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FEBRUARY 27, 2017 
 

SWEARING IN OF NEW EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEMBERS 

2 of 179



 

 

Agenda Item 1 Executive Council Meeting February 27, 2017  

Date: February 27, 2017 

Subject: Swearing in of New Executive Council Members 
 
 
Council Action: 
Information purposes only. 
 
Overview: 
 
Council Special Election  
Due to the retirement of Council members there was a need to fill two vacancies.  One vacancy in 
Population Grouping I and one vacancy in Population Grouping II.  Three Clerks in Group I and three in 
Group II submitted interest in filling the vacancy. 
 
Clerks were provided a ballot on January 20th and were required to return their ballots to the CPA firm of 
Lanigan & Associates by midnight on February 6th. 
 
Result: 
  
The ballots were opened on February 10th by John Keillor of Lanigan & Associates.  The results were 
tabulated and the firm send the outcome to the CCOC office which were provided to the Clerks via email 
that day. 
 
Gilchrist County Clerk Todd Newton was selected to represent Population Grouping I.  Clay County Clerk 
Tara Green was selected to represent Population Grouping II.  They both will be sworn in at the beginning 
of the February 27th Executive Council meeting and will then be voting members of the Council at that time. 
 
Their term of office goes until June 30th, 2018 which would complete the two year term they are filling. 
 
 
Attachments:   A:  Special Election Ballot 
  B:  CPA Firm Election Results Letter 

3 of 179



 

YOUR BALLOT MUST BE EMAILED or POSTMARKED BY 11:59 P.M., FEBRUARY 6, 2017.      
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 2017 SPECIAL ELECTION  

FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS CORPORATION 

 
Vote for one (1) individual from Group I and one (1) individual from Group II for a total of two (2) individuals to fill the 
two vacant positions on the Executive Council of the Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation for the term ending, 
June 30, 2018. You should fill in the box located to the right of the name of the person for whom you wish to vote.  
Names in BOLD and highlighted are Clerks who have indicated a willingness to serve on the Council.  Your ballot 

must be emailed or postmarked no later than 11:59 p.m. February 6, 2017.  (Clerks already elected to the Council 
representing Group I are John Crawford and Group II Jeffery Smith.)  .  
 

Group I:  Fewer than 100,000   Group II:  100,000- 500,000 

Baker Stacie Harvey ___ Alachua Jess Irby     ___ 

Bradford Ray Norman ___ Bay Bill Kinsaul ___ 

Calhoun Carla Hand ___ Charlotte Roger Eaton ___ 

Columbia P. Dewitt Cason ___ Citrus Angela Vick ___ 

Desoto Nadia Daughtrey ___ Clay Tara Green ___ 

Dixie Dana Johnson ___ Collier Dwight Brock ___ 

Franklin Marcia Johnson ___ Escambia Pam Childers ___ 

Gadsden Nicholas Thomas ___ Flagler Tom Bexley ___ 

Gilchrist Todd Newton ___ Hernando Don Barbee, Jr. ___ 

Glades  Sandra Brown ___ Highlands Bob Germaine ___ 

Gulf Rebecca Norris ___ Lake Neil Kelly ___ 

Hamilton Greg Godwin ___ Leon  Gwen Marshall ___ 

Hardee Victoria Rogers ___ Manatee Angelina Colonneso ___ 

Hendry Barbara Cox-Butler   ___ Marion David Ellspermann ___ 

Holmes Kyle Hudson  ___ Martin Carolyn Timmann  ___ 

Jackson Clay Rooks ___ Okaloosa JD Peacock ___ 

Jefferson Kirk Reams ___ Osceola Armando Ramirez ___ 

Lafayette Steve Land ___ Pasco Paula O’Neil ___ 

Levy Danny Shipp ___ Santa Rosa Donald Spencer ___ 

Liberty Kathleen Brown ___ Sarasota Karen Rushing ___ 

Madison Billy Washington ___ Seminole Grant Maloy ___ 

Monroe Kevin Madok ___ St. Johns Hunter Conrad ___ 

Okeechobee Sharon Robertson ___ St. Lucie  Joe Smith ___ 

Putnam Tim Smith ___ Sumter Gloria Hayward  ___ 

Suwannee Barry Baker ___    

Taylor Anne Mae Murphy ___    

Union Kellie Connell ___    

Wakulla Brent Thurmond ___    

Walton Alex Alford ___    

Washington Lora Bell ___    

      
      
      
      
      
      
      

 
RETURN BALLOT TO JOHN KEILLOR, C.P.A. EITHER BY EMAIL or U.S. MAIL 
 
EMAIL: jkeillor@lanigancpa.com U.S. MAIL:  JOHN KEILLOR, C.P.A.  
                                                                                                LANIGAN & ASSOCIATES  
                         2630 CENTENNIAL PLACE 
                         TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32308 
                                         

 
                                         

4 of 179



   
 

   LANIGAN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 
 CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
 www.lanigancpa.com 

  

           314 Gordon Avenue 

                                                                                                      Please reply to:    Thomasville, GA 31792 

                                                                              Tallahassee    (229) 226-8320 

          (229) 226-0038 Fax 

      

Bernard Lanigan (1918-1982)        2630 Centennial Place, Suite 1 

Bernard Lanigan, Jr., CPA        Tallahassee, FL 32308 

Frank J. Mercer, CPA, CFP        (850) 893-8418 

C. Bradford Jackson, CPA, CFA          February 10, 2017   (850) 893-9745 Fax 

D. Mark Fletcher, CPA, CFE         

G. Thomas Harrison, Jr., CPA, CFP       3353 Peachtree Road, NE 

John W. Keillor, CPA         North Tower, Suite 545 
Michael O. Sills, Jr., CPA, CFE        Atlanta, GA 30326 

Robert M. Milberg, CPA (of Counsel)        (404) 848-7221 

          (404) 442-2728 Fax 
 

     
member of  The LANIGAN GROUP of companies 

 

 

Members of the Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation 

President of the Florida Senate 

Speaker of the Florida House of Representatives State of 

Florida Chief Financial Officer 

 

 

In accordance with the Plan of Operation for the Florida Clerks of Court 

Operations Corporation, we are providing this written notification to serve as notice of our 

certification of the election results for the most recent election of the Executive Council. 

 

The voting procedures outlined in the Plan of Operation were followed as per the prescribed method. 

Our firm controlled the receipt and the counting of the ballots. The ballot counting was completed by 

our staff on February 10, 2017. The following members have been elected to the Executive Council. 

 

 

Group 1      Group 2 

Todd Newton      Tara Green 

 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to be of service. 

 

 

        Sincerely, 

 

 

 

        John Keillor, CPA 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

           John Keillor

5 of 179



 

 

 
FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS 

CORPORATION 
 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FEBRUARY 27, 2017 
 

APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 14, 2016 COUNCIL MINUTES 

  

6 of 179



 

1 
 

MINUTES 

FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS CORPORATION 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2016 4:00 PM EST (3:00 PM CST) 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING 

Grand Sandestin Resort, 9300 Emerald Coast Parkway, Miramir, FL  32550 (Azalea Room) 

 

The   November 14, 2016 meeting of the Executive Council of the Florida Clerks of Court Operations 

Corporation (CCOC) was called to order by Executive Council Chair Sharon Bock at 3:00 PM (CST). Chair 

Bock thanked all in the room and on the telephone for attending the Executive Council meeting. Roll call 

was taken by John Dew, the Executive Director. Council Members present were the Honorable Sharon 

Bock, Honorable Bob Inzer, Honorable Ken Burke, Honorable Stacy Butterfield, Honorable John Crawford, 

Honorable Jeff Smith, Honorable Tim Sanders, Honorable Paula S. O’Neil, and Honorable Kyle Hudson. 

Honorable Harvey Ruvin and Honorable Ron Ficarrotta were present via telephone. Mr. Dew stated that 

there was a quorum. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Chair Bock noted that the agenda was posted on the CCOC website. Clerk Butterfield made a motion 

to approve the agenda with a second by Clerk O’Neil. Chair Bock asked if there was any discussion, 

changes or deletions. Hearing none, the vote was taken and passed unanimously.    

APPROVAL OF MINUTES – June 27, 2016 and July 28, 2016 

Chair Bock asked CCOC Secretary/Treasurer Clerk Butterfield to present the minutes for approval of the 

previous meetings. Clerk Butterfield noted that the minutes from June 27th and July 28th were in the packet 

from page 2 through page 32. Clerk Butterfield made a motion to approve the minutes as submitted. Clerk 

Sanders seconded the motion.  Chair Bock asked if there were any questions concerning the minutes. The 

vote was taken and the minutes were approved unanimously. The minutes are now a part of the formal 

meeting. 

TREASURER’S REPORT 

Chair Bock asked CCOC Council Secretary/Treasurer Clerk Butterfield to present the Treasurer’s Report. 

Clerk Butterfield stated that the Treasure’s Report can be found on page 34 in the packet. She asked if there 

were any questions. Clerk Butterfield made a motion to approve the report. Clerk Crawford seconded the 

7 of 179



 

2 
 

motion. Chair Bock asked if there was any discussion. Hearing none, the vote was taken and passed 

unanimously.  

Chair Bock presented the CCOC Committee assignments. She noted that there is continuity by keeping 

the same committee chairs as the current year. There were surveys sent out to all Clerks to see if there was 

interest to serve on the committees. She invited Clerks who would like to participate in these important 

committees to please sign up. The Committees are:  

Budget Committee: 
Chair: The Honorable Stacy M. Butterfield, CPA 
Vice Chair: The Honorable Jeffrey Smith, CPA 

Performance Improvement and Efficiencies Committee: 
Chair: The Honorable Tara Green 

Vice Chair: The Honorable Don Barbee 
Legislative Committee: 

Chair: The Honorable Carolyn Timmann 
Vice Chair: The Honorable Ken Burke, CPA 

Education Program Committee: 
Chair: The Honorable Sharon R. Bock, Esq. 

Vice Chair: The Honorable Tiffany Moore Russell, Esq. 
Plan of Operations Committee: 

Chair: The Honorable Ken Burke, CPA 
Vice Chair: The Honorable Sharon R. Bock, Esq. 

STANDING WORKGROUPS: 
Financial Analysis & Enhancement Workgroup: 

Chair: The Honorable Don Barbee 
Technology Funding Workgroup: 

Chair: The Honorable J.D. Peacock 
 

Clerk Harvey Ruvin asked to be included on the Legislative Committee. Chair Bock told Clerk Ruvin to 

consider himself appointed.  

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Chair Bock began by noting that she is the Chair, Clerk Burke is the Vice-Chair and Clerk Butterfield is 

the Secretary/Treasurer of the Executive Committee.  The Committee met on July 28, September 9, and 

October 31, 2016. There are three items the Committee addressed that she wanted to report to the 

Council. 

The first item was the need for an organizational study of the CCOC office.  The Committee members 

felt that since such a study was being conducted of the FCCC at this time it would also be beneficial to 

have a study also of the CCOC office.  The CCOC staff sent out a request for invitation and we are currently 

negotiating with Evergreen Solutions, LLC to conduct the study. This study will review current staffing, 

8 of 179



 

3 
 

compensation, benefits, etc. The study will start soon and hopefully be done early next year. If the study is 

complete, a presentation with the information will be given at the next Executive Council meeting in 

February, 2017.  

The second item was the approval of a one-time bonus for several CCOC staff. Chair Bock commended 

the CCOC staff for their hard work. Like a number of Clerk’s staff and state employees there have been no 

raises provided over the last several years.  This is the same case with the CCOC employees.  The 

Committee members noted the CCOC staff in July worked numerous hours beyond the regular work week 

due to the extensive budget process.  Clerk Butterfield noted as an example one staffer worked an extra 

160 hours in July without any additional benefit.  She explained that there was a position vacant, the 

Budget Director’s position, during a very critical time when the budget was trying to get submitted, 

reviewed, and analyzed.  Also one staff member was out sick during this time which required the other 

employees to take up that person’s duties.  Therefore the existing staff was called upon to go above and 

beyond the normal number of hours in the month of July.  Clerk Burke noted due to the constriction of the 

budget cycle, the staff had to work hours in order to get the information back out to the Clerks timely.  He 

wanted to emphasize that it is for recognition of exceptional service this year.  Mr. Dew reminded the 

Council members that he has documentation which was provided to the CCOC Secretary/Treasurer 

outlining the work done by those staff and the reason the performance warranted a bonus.  He noted he 

would share the details with anyone seeking this information and thanked the Committee for recognizing 

the hard work done by staff. 

 The last item discussed by the Committee was the need to ensure the accuracy of any budget related 

information provided to the Legislature well as the process.  The Budget and Legislative Committees will 

be working together so that the data given to the State Legislature whether it is collectively or individually, 

it will be fully vetted by the two committees. It was also decided because of the complexities of the work 

we do as Clerks, instead of just sending data as a data drop, CCOC would also include the details on the 

methodologies used and any caveats with the information. There will also be added a place holder on all 

the documents informing that the data came from the CCOC. If there are questions from legislators or 

legislative staff, they can call CCOC for clarification.  

These were the tasks that the Executive Committee took on and Chair Bock asked if there any 

questions. Clerk O’Neil had a question about the Executive Committee making decisions without needing a 

quorum vote from the Executive Council.  Chair Bock explained that in the Plan of Operations allows the 

committee to do the business and then report to the Council.  The committee only meets four times a 

year. Committee meetings are noticed and notes are taken. It is a proper meeting under our process.  

9 of 179



 

4 
 

BUDGET COMMITTEE  

Chair Bock asked Clerk Butterfield to report on the Budget Committee which met on October 13th, 

2016. Clerk Butterfield gave a summary of the items that were discussed.   

15/16 BUDGET YEAR 

For the CFY15-16 that just ended, the committee went over outstanding items. Clerk Butterfield 

provided a review of the revenue history for Clerks for that year. Clerk Butterfield started with actual 

revenues to projected revenues. Beginning of the year revenue projections were a higher number than 

what we re-projected in April. On page 60 in the packet, you can see we actually ended the year with 

$382.5 million in revenues collected. The original revenue projection by Clerks in June 2015 was at $412.5 

million which was a huge difference than what actually came in. Clerks submitted their operational budget 

in the fall and lowered their projected revenue to $404 million.  In April, the Budget Committee had to 

come back and actually reduce the budget to clerks based on the available revenue with re-projections of 

$381.4 million.  

Next is the settle-up issue which is due January 25, 2017.  Clerk Butterfield wanted the Council to see 

the charts on page 62 and 63. The first chart is the money that is due to the Trust Fund from Clerks’ 

offices. It is a combination of unspent appropriations and/or revenue projection dollars above re-

projected revenues. That net is $8.9 million that needs to be submitted to the Trust Fund by Clerks. You 

now have to look at the money that is due to Clerks from the Trust Fund. The next chart shows that there 

is $2.3 million due from the Trust Fund to Clerks. That is a calculation where revenue projections came in 

less or above and in most cases it was less than what was collected locally in the Clerks’ offices and then 

any unspent appropriations. The net of those two numbers is $6.6 million and that is the amount of 

money that can be carried forward into next year. We asked Clerks of the $8.9 million to go ahead and 

send your money to the Trust Fund now and not wait until January 25th.  The money is needed to make 

disbursements to funded Clerks in this fiscal year. Many Clerks’ offices have remitted that money and 

Clerk Butterfield thanked those Clerks. 

The third item to discuss was jury funding which the Legislature restored to the Clerks at the beginning 

of the state fiscal year. There has been one quarter’s worth of money, $2.9 million that was available to 

Clerks. The Clerks submitted their requests which was more than the $2.9 million and the funding was 

based on a pro rata share. There was a report of actual expenditures for that same time period. As 

expected the actual expenditures were more than the $2.9 million. The report can be found on page 69 

10 of 179



 

5 
 

with expenditures of $3.4 million. And as we move into this quarter, the money has been requested. This 

is ongoing not quarter by quarter. Mr. Dew noted that since the funding is on a state fiscal year basis 

which goes from July through June that Clerks can carry over any unspent dollars from the quarter of 

August through September.  

16/17 BUDGET YEAR 

For the 16-17 fiscal year, Clerks requested more than $466 million. The Budget Committee worked 

throughout the summer and had a needs based budget recommendation of $459 million. However, Clerk 

Butterfield noted that we are limited by the revenue available and that is projected to be only $422 

million. On August 1 the CCOC met the statutory deadline and submitted to the Legislative Budget 

Commission (LBC) a request of $422 million.  This request was approved by the LBC at their September 

meeting. The individual allocations are there and the calculations of the funded versus depository Clerks 

had been made based on that individual allocation for each clerk’s budget. For the operational budget, the 

only budget at the moment in the PABS system is the original budget the clerks submitted as of June 1st. 

That was the $469 million figure. We will still need for Clerks to submit an operational budget for the 16-

17 budget year that will get us to the $422 million approved budget.  Those forms are going to change 

from previous years. As we went through the summer process and last year’s process that is the one thing 

that keeps coming back is the need for more transparent and accountable data. We are going to be asking 

for information and those operational budget forms will gather the data that is needed to be able to 

address Clerks’ needs and actual costs. The forms will be going out soon.  The revised expenditures and 

collection report (EC Report) form that includes each Clerks approved budget amounts has been 

completed and sent to clerks.  

 17/18 BUDGET YEAR 

Clerk Butterfield asked Mr. Jason Harrell to summarize the State’s fiscal outlook so the Council and 

Clerks could be aware of the situation heading into the 2017 Legislative session.  Mr. Dew introduced Mr. 

Harrell as the CCOC’s new Budget and Communications Director. He comes from the Florida House of 

Representatives where he was the Deputy Director for the Majority Office and prior to that worked for the 

Governor in the Office of Planning and Budgeting. 

 Mr. Harrell began by noting that moving into the next fiscal year and the next budget cycle, there is 

only a $17 million surplus. That is a big change from recent years where there was upwards of a billion 

dollar surplus. The Legislature’s Revenue Estimating Conference is also projecting a deficit in the following 

two years. The Legislature will be taking action in the upcoming session to reduce state budgets and take 

11 of 179



 

6 
 

actions to change the projections in the upcoming years.  There will be a tighter fiscal outlook in 

Tallahassee in the upcoming session. Clerk Butterfield noted that the bottom line in the upcoming session 

is that we have a need and we have to serve that need, but realize that the clerks are going to be 

competing with other entities with similar needs as well.  

Clerk Butterfield continued with the Peer Groups for 17-18. When we go through the budget process 

and as required by Statutes, there is a comparison of Clerk to Clerk in their peer group when the budget 

process is ongoing. It was decided that every two years there would be a review of the peer groups to 

make sure that the appropriate Clerks are being compared to one another. Last time it was done was two 

years ago. So prior to any comparisons before the next budget process, we need a review of the peer 

groups. The contract with a company, Economist Inc., is in the packet to be approved today. The statutes 

say that it is by comparison of population and cases.  

Clerk Butterfield moved on to 2017-18 budget process, forms and timeline. Timeline discussion was 

first. As we moved along this year, the time to do the review and make recommendations was so 

condensed that the Budget Committee would like to consider having Clerks submit their budget request 

earlier than the June 1st statutory date. There is a potential budget timeframe proposal on page 81 of the 

packet. As you can see, looking at around May 1st to have the submittal of the budget request. We have an 

August 1st requirement to have it to the LBC. That will give the Budget Committee the months of June and 

July to have their peer group reviews and have the final recommendations to the Council for the LBC 

process. Clerk Butterfield will be looking for approval of this general timeline.  

Out of all the Budget Peer group meetings, a list was made of all the items and summarized as to what 

the committee would like to research and address this year. Several of these items have already been 

tackled. At the Budget Committee meeting there were three workgroups that were established and found 

in the packet on page 82. The first workgroup is counting new cases consistently and will be led by Clerk 

Burke. The second workgroup will look at a base budget concept as an additional tool or resource for 

comparisons and will look at some concepts of establishing a base budget for all Clerks. Clerk Timmann 

and Clerk Smith are taking on that workgroup. The third workgroup will look at the cost and the whole 

concept of health care insurance. Clerk Childers will be leading that workgroup.  

The action items today can be found on page 49. Clerk Butterfield summarized the Summary of Budget 
Actions: 

1) Approval of CFY 2015-16 Settle-Up Calculations. CCOC staff to follow-up with Clerks  
    owing excess to request that they remit dollars early to the trust fund. 
2) Approval of CFY 2016-17 Operational Budget Forms with the ability for Chair 
     Butterfield to work with CCOC staff on any additional, minor changes. 

12 of 179



 

7 
 

3) Approval of CFY 2016-17 EC Report Form. 
4) Approval for CCOC staff to begin a peer group study contract. 
5) Approval of work groups being established in the following CFY 2017-18 areas: budget 
    forms and timeline, base budget concept, analyzing Clerks’ benefits, and addressing 
    the issue of counting cases consistently. 
6) Approval for Chair Butterfield to work with CCOC staff to prioritize and organize  

     workgroups for the list of additional studies and research projects that were discussed.         

Clerk Butterfield made the motion to approve the six action items. Clerk Smith seconded the motion. Chair 

Bock asked if there was any discussion. Hearing none a vote was taken. The motion passed.  

PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT AND EFFICIENCY (PIE) COMMITTEE 

Chair Bock asked Clerk Green to give the PIE Committee report. The first item on the agenda is the 3rd 

Quarter Performance Measures Report. Clerk Green noted that there were more corrective action plans in 

the third quarter compared to the second quarter with a huge increase in action plans for collections. She 

continued by stating that in fact, 73% of the action plans were in the collections arena. A trend is starting 

that if the Clerks go up in one performance measure, they are then sliding in another performance 

measure. Clerk Green asked for a motion to approve the performance measure report and post them on 

the CCOC website. Clerk Butterfield made the motion and it was seconded by Clerk O’Neil. Chair Bock 

asked for a vote and the motion passed unanimously.  

Clerk Green continued with the second item being the approval to send out the Collection Agency 

Report and Continuing Case Report to the Clerks for them to complete. This report goes out on December 

1st and it will be used as input to the Budget Committee as extra data. An approval is all that is needed to 

send those reports for inputs out for distribution. These were included in the packet. Clerk O’Neil made 

the motion and Clerk Inzer seconded. Chair Bock called for a vote and the motion passed unanimously. 

Clerk Green followed with the Performance and Accountability Clerk (PAC) Framework. There has 

been a lot of progress and it is actually the workgroup that has been working through PAC Framework. At 

one of the last meetings on October 27th and 28th, the workgroup finalized the task level. The workgroup 

has broken it down into program services, activities and tasks, a hierarchy of what clerks do. The three 

programs being criminal, civil, and traffic. There are nine services – Case Processing, Revenue Collections 

and Distribution, Financial Processing, Request Records & Reports, Provide Pro Se Ministerial Assistance, 

Technology Services for External Users, Mandated Reporting Services, Jury Management, and 

Administration.  Next is activities and you start to get the idea of the number of tasks that are needed to 

do to complete each activity. For example, case processing under services which happens to be one of the 

13 of 179



 

8 
 

larger ones, the first is to create and maintain the court records, where there are 196 listed tasks in order 

to complete that one activity.  

The next steps are continuing to work on the legal authority tied to the tasks the Clerks do and testing 

a costing methodology. It takes time to do these tasks so we are wanting to determine the cost? The 

workgroup is documenting how long it takes to do certain tasks. We are going to see if we can come up 

with a way to tie resources to the time it takes to get it done. 

The workgroup is going to meet again on December 12th and 13th to continue on the legal authority 

as well as another agenda item that will be brought up later. In January and February, we will be 

identifying what duties Clerks have and what revenues are associated with them and what duties the 

Clerks have that have no revenue associated with them. Chair Bock asked if anyone had any questions. 

She noted that Clerk Green was not asking for a motion, but a vote of confidence that the workgroup is 

headed in the right direction. Clerk O’Neil agreed that it was wonderful to have a clerk’s duty explained 

clearly.  

The next agenda item is related to weighted workload measurement methodology. The same 

workgroup is working with this also. The approach is to try to hone in on weighted caseloads by sub case 

types with a little more detail. The list that was initially used is right off State Reporting System (SRS) case 

types along with 17 additional case types. The workgroup will look at weighting 1 through 10 by division 

and look at these cases at a sub case type level to try to further define a weight. Basically, looking for 

feedback if this is an exercise worth the time to keep trying to flush out the weighted workload measure. 

It is going to be co-dependent on Clerk Burke’s work as far as counting cases. The workgroup is trying to 

think of a step up approach once the counting cases and business rules are in place and understood, then 

the group would have a link to those cases and could apply that and might have a clearer weighting on a 

sub case type.  She is looking for some direction from the council on moving forward on the weighted 

workload measure and come back with an update.  Clerk Inzer made the motion and Clerk O’Neil 

seconded to move forward with not only the case counts but also with the weighted workload. Vote was 

taken and the motion passed. Chair Bock thanked Clerk Green for her work and all on the workgroups.  

FUNDING TECHNOLOGY WORKGROUP 

Chair Bock called upon Clerk Peacock the Chair of the Technology to go over what his group has been 

doing. He began with saying that along with Clerk Green’s PAC Framework study and using the Maturity 

Model tool that the Technology committee at FCCC there is going to be two different angles for strategy to 

14 of 179



 

9 
 

cost out the return on investment for technology. He believes proving the return on investment for 

automation through technology is where we are going to be able to get proper funding. With the PAC 

drilling down on the costing out the task, and then we see how automation can be used for that task. That 

is the return on investment. Over the next year, there will be a long term solution for technology spending 

and the return on investment. In the near term, it might be helpful to have something for this Legislative 

session from a strategy standpoint.  He identified the loss of the 10% funding to operational costs and how 

the loss of those dollars for automation averages about $8 million a year statewide. This is a small piece 

that we can communicate to the Legislature as a loss toward development of automation which could 

have been an immediate return on investment. Clerk Peacock will be working with Mr. Harrell as well as 

the Legislative Committee on the FCCC side to see if we can get a small piece for technology that was lost 

with the 10% dollars.  

Chair Bock stated that the technology funding piggy backs with the PAC Framework and New Case 

counts. You drill down and see where technology is a most effective tool for that particular case type. 

Clerks need to be proactive in asking state legislators for technology money. This will move the Clerks a 

little bit forward which is what we have been trying to do and technology is something tangible. Chair 

Bock asked if there were any questions for Clerk Peacock. There were none. She thanked him for his 

report. 

CCOC CONTRACTS 

 Chair Bock moved on to the CCOC contracts that are in your packet starting on page 139.  Mr. Isabelle 

began by explaining that Section 28.35 (4), Florida Statutes authorizes the CCOC to pay expenses as 

necessary to perform the official duties and responsibilities of the corporation. There were five contracts 

for the calendar year 2016 awarded for annual financial audit, internal auditing, clerk education, 

technology, and budget services. In 2017, these contracts are available for an extension and he is seeking 

approval of the Council.  The CCOC staff have reviewed the performance of the contractor’s work thus far 

in 2016 and are recommending the contracts be extended through 2017. All the vendors have agreed to 

the 2017 contract extensions at their current rate and current services.  Clerk Inzer made the motion to 

extend each of these contracts from January 1 through December 31st 201. Clerk Butterfield seconded. 

Clerk O’Neil had a question. She asked if Joe Boyd was under contract. Mr. Dew stated that he is under 

contact but is not part of the process of an annual extension. There were no more questions and the vote 

was taken. The motion passed unanimously.   

 

15 of 179



 

10 
 

Mr. Isabelle continued noting that there were three new contracts he is seeking approval on. Each of the 

contracts are found as part of the meeting packet.  The first contact is for the hiring of Evergreen Solutions 

to conduct an organizational study of the CCOC office.  The second contract is for the hiring of the 

Economists Incorporated to conduct the Peer Group Review Study.  The final contact is with Krizner Group 

to be on a retainer for human resources training and consulting as needed. There was no discussion, and 

vote was taken and passed unanimously. 

 

CLERKS’ ROLE IN COLLECTIONS DISCUSSION 

Chair Bock moved on to the next item on the agenda which was a draft letter to Florida Supreme 

Court Chief Justice Labarga on the Clerk’s Role in Collection.  Assuring effective collection to hold 

individuals accountable to the ruling by the court is something that the Clerks and Courts jointly want to 

do. Chair Bock was going to suggest that the Financial Analysis Workgroup headed by Clerk Barbee may be 

a great committee to bring back to the Council a report after looking at all these ideas. Collections are a 

big issue and are going to come up in this year’s legislative session.  Not only the amount Clerks are 

collecting, not only the amount assessed, but also whether the collection process is being properly 

executed and whether or not is it fair. Chair Bock would like to turn this over to the Financial and Analysis 

Workgroup to report back to the Council. In the meantime she felt it was important to have a meeting 

with the Chief Justice to communicate better and clarify the roles of the Judges and Clerks concerning 

collection.  

Clerk Burke stated that the Clerk is responsible for the collection effort once the Judge sets the fine 

and fee. The big issue that was brought up at the Budget Committee and he noted to Judge Ficarrotta that 

it is not meant any ill intent, but there is interference by the magistrates, judges, etc.  The Judges will say 

you have 90 days to pay, etc. They should be saying your fine is $400 go see the clerk.  Judge Ficarrotta 

stated that he agreed with Clerk Burke and that the role of the Judge is to assess the fine or cost and the 

collecting is up to the Clerk. That is how he has always run it. It is certainly something he could look into. 

Clerk Burke continued that it was asked of Chair Bock to communicate with the Chief Justice that each role 

needs to be respected and it is hard for the Clerks to do their collection effort when the Judge makes up 

the payment plan criteria.  Clerk Burke made a motion to write a letter to the Chief Justice stating that the 

legislature looked to the Clerks for this role and asking for any assistance in communicating this to the 

judiciary. Clerk Sanders seconded. Judge Ficarrotta noted that there is a Chief Judges’ meeting in 

December and he would be glad to put this on the agenda. It would be good for Chair Bock to write the 

letter and put it on the Chief Justice’s radar. Chair Bock wanted to make it clear that the Council sees this 

as two different issues. One is internal issue of getting Clerks to be uniform and the other is external issue 

16 of 179



 

11 
 

of having the courts and the Clerks be uniform in the application of clearer intent and wording of the 

Florida Statutes.   

A vote was taken on the motion and it passed unanimously. 

 

 

REPORT ON CLERKS’ TRUST FUND 

Chair Bock called upon Mr. Dew to give the report on the Clerk’s Trust Fund. On page 177, as you 

heard earlier for CFY 15-16 there was enough dollars in the trust fund to provide to the funded Clerks. The 

CFY 16-17 outlook is that there are settle up dollars that will help. That is necessary because the amount 

of money needed for the funded Clerks each month is less than the amount of revenue coming in from the 

depository Clerks.   

Mr. Dew also wanted to point out the revenue trends. If you look at revenue trends and the case 

trends, the cases for CFY 15-16 compared to the previous year are down 5.6 %. The revenues are down 

just over 4.5% from the previous year. Also the revenue trend by division when you look at the amount of 

dollars that come in by each division, revenue trends show that civil traffic revenues account for 27% of 

the total revenues collected in CFY 15-16. When you look at the revenues per case, circuit civil revenues 

per case are $412 compared to juvenile delinquency case of $3. We have the data now to show by all 67 

Clerks by month. The last item to point out is the Revenue Estimating Conference will be meeting 

November 16th. The Revenue Estimating Conference determines what they project will be available for 

Clerks. Mr. Isabelle has been working with many staff on the numbers and the revenue projection was 

$386.2 million in July. We do not think that this will be going up and just wanted you to be aware of this. It 

may go down slightly. After we get the number Wednesday, it will be sent out to all the clerks. Mr. Dew 

asked Mr. Isabelle what he projected and he stated about a 1% decrease to about $382.3 million. This is 

the CCOC recommendation but the Revenue Conference may be different. The dollar amounts need to be 

looked at from current conditions. That ended the report.  

Chair Bock thanked Mr. Dew. Clerk Inzer asked if civil citations programs are showing an expansion in 

other cities and counties. He has not seen much in the way of articles since last year. Mr. Dew said that he 

had not seen any articles lately either. Lakeland has a civil citation program. Clerk Butterfield stated that 

she has not been capturing any data. Clerk Inzer feels that this should be monitored because it has a 

significant impact on the Clerks’ revenues.  

17 of 179



 

12 
 

UPDATE ON TCBC ISSUES 

Chair Bock asked Judge Ficarrotta to please give his report. He began that the Trial Court Budget 

Commission met on August 11th to address budget issues coming up and once again they would be 

focusing on employee pay, case management resources, court interpreter resources, staff attorneys and 

trial court technology. On November 7th, there was a conference call regarding a senior judge raise from 

the previous year and funding two cross judicial technology support staff in Tallahassee. He will bring the 

letter to the Chief Justice in December. He thinks this is another fine example of the courts and clerks 

working together. That concluded his report. Chair Bock thanked him.  

OTHER BUSINESS  

There was no other business that was brought forward. 

Chair Bock noted that today was the very last meeting for Clerks Tim Sanders and Bob Inzer as 

members of the CCOC Executive Council. Clerk Sanders is the longest serving member of the council 

beginning in 2006. He has been chair of the Personnel Committee and the Plan of Operations Committee. 

Clerk Inzer is the second longest serving clerk and has served since 2008.  Chair Bock noted that both have 

given so much to the CCOC Executive Council and to public service. If it was not for your work, we would 

not be where we are today. Mr. Dew also thanked both the retiring Clerks and noted how much each has 

contributed to the success of the CCOC over the years. Clerk Inzer and Clerk Sanders each spoke of their 

time on the Council and thanked everyone.   Motion to adjourn was made by Clerk Butterfield and 

seconded by Clerk Crawford. The meeting was adjourned at 4:45PM. 

 

18 of 179



 

 

 
FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS 

CORPORATION 
 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FEBRUARY 27, 2017 
 

  
Agenda Item #3a 

Financial Statement (Audit) CFY 15/16 

19 of 179



20 of 179



21 of 179



22 of 179



23 of 179



24 of 179



25 of 179



26 of 179



27 of 179



28 of 179



29 of 179



30 of 179



31 of 179



32 of 179



33 of 179



34 of 179



35 of 179



36 of 179



37 of 179



38 of 179



39 of 179



40 of 179



41 of 179



42 of 179



43 of 179



44 of 179



45 of 179



46 of 179



47 of 179



48 of 179



49 of 179



50 of 179



51 of 179



52 of 179



53 of 179



54 of 179



55 of 179



56 of 179



57 of 179



58 of 179



59 of 179



60 of 179



Year to Date (%) of Budget

Expenditures Expended

CCOC STAFF: $799,949.00 $63,996.58 $64,524.04 $63,418.46 $63,570.71 $255,509.79 31.94%

OPS STAFF: $22,000.00 $1,199.00 $1,320.00 $869.00 $478.50 $3,866.50 17.58%

GENERAL EXPENSES: $92,761.00 $6,601.21 $5,227.79 $5,456.06 $4,176.09 $21,461.15 23.14%

TRAVEL: $60,400.00 $3,130.40 $3,979.03 $1,777.58 $753.67 $9,640.68 15.96%

STAFF TRAINING: $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

CONTRACTUAL EXPENSES: $282,454.00 $3,688.75 $11,716.25 $14,258.75 $21,926.50 $51,590.25 18.27%

EDUCATION SERVICES $354,533.00 $12,590.00 $73,950.00 $59,590.00 $146,130.00 41.22%

$1,617,097.00 $0.00 $78,615.94 $99,357.11 $159,729.85 $150,495.47 $488,198.37 30.19%

*CCOC has the authority to revise category amounts due to established Legislative Budget Authority.

Oct Nov Dec Jan
Budget Category

Amount

TOTALS:

CCOC Budgetary Report 

County Fiscal Year 2016 - 2017

(October 1, 2016 - September 30, 2017)

ALL MONTHS 16-17, Oct 16 to Sept 17 2/20/2017,9:32 AM61 of 179



 

 

 
FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS 

CORPORATION 
 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FEBRUARY 27, 2017 
 

  
Agenda Item #3b 

CFY 16/17 Monthly Financial Report 

62 of 179



 

 

 
FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS 

CORPORATION 
 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FEBRUARY 27, 2017 
 
  

STATUS OF PEER GROUP REVIEW STUDY 

63 of 179



 

 

Agenda Item 5 Executive Council Meeting February 27, 2017  

Date: February 27, 2017 

Subject: Agenda Item 5: Status of Peer Group Review Study 
 
 
Committee Action: 
For informational purposes only. 
 
Overview/Background: 
During the December 7, 2016 Budget Committee meeting, consultant Bo Shippen, from Economist, Inc., 
provided an updated to the committee on the progress of the peer group review study. 
 
He provided a review of the 2012 and 2014 reports and discussed challenges encountered in modeling the 
previous reports, model changes under consideration for the 2016 report, and additional suggestions that 
have been brought forward by Clerks and CCOC staff. The committee then had an opportunity to comment, 
provide suggestions, or ask questions.  
 
Chair Butterfield and committee members indicated that it was very important to get feedback from all 
clerks on this project. CCOC staff advised that on November 22, 2016, an email was sent to select clerks 
staff asking for feedback on the peer group process. At the meeting, Chair Butterfield advised that post 
meeting she would ask the CCOC to reach out to all clerks for feedback on the peer group review process. 
Clerk Smith made a motion for a memo to be sent to Clerks from Chair Butterfield, asking for any input 
regarding the peer group review study to be submitted to CCOC by close of business December 16th. 
 
Actions Taken: 
On December 12, 2017 Jason Harrell, CCOC Budget and Communications Director, sent an email to all clerks 
with a memo from Chair Butterfield requesting their feedback on input to be provided to the consultant for 
the peer group study (see attached). Throughout December comments were received and provided to the 
consultant for review. In all, over a dozen clerks’ offices provided their thoughts and ideas.  
 
Throughout January, CCOC staff continued to work with Mr. Shippen providing information for the study. 
On February 3, 2017, CCOC staff, John Dew, Doug Isabelle, and Jason Harrell met with Mr. Shippen to 
receive a status update. Mr. Shippen indicated that he would continue his work, taking into account all the 
feedback and input from clerks and CCOC staff, with the goal of presenting a draft report at the March 
Budget Committee meeting.  
  

Subsequently, CCOC staff provided updates to Chair Butterfield as needed. The intent is for Mr. Shippen to 
present to the Budget Committee on March 15, 2017.  
 
 
 

64 of 179



  
 
    

  Agenda Item 5  • Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
Attachments:  
12/12/17 Email from Jason Harrell, CCOC Budget and Communications Director, to all Clerks.  
Memo from Chair Butterfield to all clerks.  
Peer Group Study PowerPoint Presentation from Dec. 7th Budget Committee meeting  
 
Committee consideration: 
N/A 
 
 
Lead Staff: 
Jason Harrell, CCOC Budget and Communications Director 

65 of 179



66 of 179



67 of 179



68 of 179



69 of 179



70 of 179



71 of 179



72 of 179



73 of 179



74 of 179



75 of 179



76 of 179



77 of 179



78 of 179



 

 

 
FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS 

CORPORATION 
 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FEBRUARY 27, 2017 
 
  

AGENDA ITEM #6a 
 CHAIR’S REPORT ON EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

79 of 179



 

 

Agenda Item 6a Executive Council Meeting February 27, 2017  

Date: February 27, 2017 

Subject: CCOC Executive Committee Report 
 
 
Council Action: 
Approve CCOC draft agenda at the beginning of the Council meeting.  Provide direction on other items to 
the Executive Committee. 
 
Overview: 
 
Executive Committee Phone Conference Call  
The Committee met via a conference call at 2pm on February 13th to review the draft agenda for the 
upcoming Council meeting.  The purpose was to provide guidance to staff on potential items for the 
agenda, the layout of the agenda, and receive an update on staff work to date as we prepared for the 
upcoming Council meeting.  
 
Result: 
  
The Committee provided a draft agenda that was sent out to the Council on February 16th.  Other items of 
discussion included potential dates for the next CCOC Budget Committee meeting; requesting CCOC staff to 
work with the Secretary/Treasurer in listing of office contracts; timely review of CCOC office policies and 
procedures; process for review of the CCOC Plan of Operations; process for revision to CCOC letterhead; 
and a discussion on the upcoming legislative session and the need for sufficient funding for Clerks.  
 
The Council and Corporation members were provided the draft summary minutes of the meeting on 
February 17th.   
 
 
Attachments:   A:  CCOC Executive Committee Draft Summary Minutes 

80 of 179



 

 

 
FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS 

CORPORATION 
 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FEBRUARY 27, 2017 
 
  

AGENDA ITEM #6b 
REPORT ON CCOC BUDGET COMMITTEE  

81 of 179



 

 

Agenda Item 6b Executive Council Meeting February 27, 2017  

Date: February 27, 2017 

Subject: Agenda Item 6b: Budget Committee Report 
 
 
Council Action: 
 
Since the last Council Meeting the Budget Committee met on December 7, 2016.  Attached are the agenda 
and the summary minutes from that meeting.  The actual meeting packet can be found by clicking on the 
CCOC website at www.flccoc.org , clicking on “meetings and minutes, and then clicking on “Budget 
Committee”, and choosing the date of the meeting. 
 
Overview of December 7, 2016 Budget Committee Meeting: 
 
Update and Presentation on Peer Group Review Study 
  
Bo Shippen, from Economists Incorporated presented a preliminary review and discussion for the 2016 

peer group review study currently in process. He provided a review of the 2012 and 2014 reports and 

discussed challenges encountered in modeling the previous reports, model changes under consideration for 

the 2016 report, and additional suggestions that have been brought forward by Clerks and CCOC staff. Mr. 

Shippen stated that he anticipated to have a preliminary report ready sometime in January. The committee 

then had an opportunity to comment or ask questions and thought it would be best to give all Clerks the 

opportunity to provide feedback regarding the study.  

Clerk Smith made a motion for a memo to be sent to Clerks from Chair Butterfield, asking for any input 

regarding the peer group review study to be submitted to CCOC by close of business December 16th. Clerk 

Timmann seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

See full report in Agenda Item 5.  

 
Update on CFY 2016-17 Operational Budgets 

Chair Butterfield provided an update regarding the CFY 2016-17 operational budget forms. The committee 

discussed a timeline for the forms to be sent out and submitted by Clerks, as well. Clerk Burke made a 

motion for the operational budget forms to be sent to Clerks from CCOC staff by December 16th and set a 

deadline for submission on January 13th, 2017 and also allow Chair Butterfield to work with CCOC staff to 

adjust this timeline if necessary. 

Subsequently, CCOC sent the forms and has received clerks’ operational budgets. CCOC staff is conducting 

technical reviews and analysis to provide further information to the Budget Committee during the March 

meeting.  

82 of 179

http://www.flccoc.org/


  
 
    

  Agenda Item 6b  • Page 2 of 5 
 

Update on Trust Fund 
John Dew provided an update regarding the balance of the trust fund and the pending disbursements 

needing to be made soon, including the CFY 2015-16 settle-up and the December deficit payment. The 

committee discussed the need to prioritize those disbursements and possibly making it a policy for future 

fiscal years so that it does not have to be voted on each year. Mr. Dew also provided an update regarding 

reported revenues collected for September and October of CFY 2016-17. 

Clerk Burke made a motion to disburse the CFY 2015-16 settle-up dollars to Clerks first, then disburse the 
December deficit disbursement to the funded Clerks as dollars are available in the trust fund and adopt this 
as a policy moving forward.  
 
Update on Juror Funding 
John Dew provided an update on the juror funding and explained how any carryforward from the first 

quarter of funding will be taken into consideration when allocating dollars statewide for the 3rd quarter 

disbursement. Mr. Dew also noted that CCOC staff are working closely with JAC staff to ensure a smooth 

process going into quarter 4. 

Jury UPDATE:  

On January 25, 2017, the Justice Administration Commission (JAC) presented their annual Schedule VIIIB-2 

reduction activities before the House Justice Appropriation Committee. Their reduction exercise included a 

$1.7 million, or 10 percent, cut to funds that pass through JAC to Florida Clerks of Court for juror 

reimbursement, and are included as part of Clerks’ Legislatively approved budget authority. In addition, on 

February 3, 2017, the JAC submitted a letter to members of the House Committee advising that they were 

revising their proposed reductions, to now include a reduction of $9.6 million of the $11.7 million that is 

passed through to Clerks or Court for jury costs. 

CCOC and FCCC coordinated efforts to respond to this reduction proposal and make sure the true impact of 

the cuts was understood. CCOC provided information on the jury management process to House, Senate and 

Governor’s Office staff. CCOC and FCCC leadership are continuing to monitor this issue and will keep clerks 

updated accordingly.   

Summary of November 16 Revenue Estimating Conference Meeting 

Doug Isabelle provided a review of the November 16 REC meeting. CCOC staff projected a lower amount 

than the previous meeting and the conference adopted a reduced revenue projection from the July 

meeting, projecting further declines for out years.  

A REC meeting was held February 17, 2017. A full update is provided later in the document.  

 State Budget Issues 

Jason Harrell provided an update on the state fiscal outlook and changes that were discussed by the House, 

in November, indicating that the predicted revenue shortfalls may happen earlier than anticipated, in this 

fiscal year versus out years. 

 

 

83 of 179



  
 
    

  Agenda Item 6b  • Page 3 of 5 
 

Discussion of CFY 2017-18 Budget Timeline 

Chair Butterfield discussed the draft timeline provided in the meeting materials and asked for feedback 

regarding moving the budget submission date back to an earlier date for the CFY1718 budget process to 

give CCOC staff and the Budget Committee more time to analyze the data. 

It was decided to set the initial budget submission deadline for May 1, 2017. The remainder of the draft 

timeline can be set and revised at Chair Butterfield’s discretion.  

Update on Workgroups 

The Committee was provided with an update on the following workgroups. 

a) Base Budget Workgroup 
 
Clerk Timmann and Clerk Smith updated the committee on the work of the base budget 
workgroup. Clerk Timmann and Smith are currently working with their staff to develop a base 
budget for their individual offices and plan to meet again once this initial project is done to 
discuss next steps.  
 
CCOC staff has continued to coordinate with Clerk Timmann and Smith and expect to provide an 
update at the March Budget Committee meeting.  
 

b) Health Care Workgroup 
 

Jason Harrell and Clerk Childers updated the committee on the progress of the health care 
workgroup. Mr. Harrell explained that data has been compiled from the health care surveys 
submitted by each Clerk’s office in the summer of 2016 and compared to the state rates. Next 
steps include analyzing the data and identifying and clarifying anomalies. 
 
Subsequently, CCOC staff continued to work on analyzing the data. Clerk Childers has been 
briefed on the progress. There will be an update at the March Budget Committee meeting.  
 

c) Case Count Workgroup 
 
Clerk Burke provided the committee with an update regarding the case count workgroup. The 
workgroup met in Tallahassee with CCOC staff and FCCC staff to discuss the data that is 
available, potential issues with the data, and developed a general plan for moving forward to 
audit the data in a sense. 
 
Status report of Ken Burke’s New Case Filings Project 

The Budget Committee directed Mr. Burke to investigate and develop a process to endure that 

new cases that are reported to the CCOC are accurate and consistently reported across all Clerk 

offices.  A work group of Clerk staff was created.  They created a methodology that identified 

Clerks’ offices that appeared to be anomalies, either high and/or low the number of case filing 

compared to their peer group.  Whether high or low does not mean that an office is reporting 

right or wrong. 

84 of 179



  
 
    

  Agenda Item 6b  • Page 4 of 5 
 

A survey document was created and training was provided in early February with over 100 

participants.  The survey was due to the CCOC by February 20th.  Over half the Clerk’s offices 

have sent in their surveys.  The CCOC staff is reaching out to office where necessary.  

The surveys are being evaluated and final results will be provided as soon as possible. The goal 

is to amend and clarify the business rules and provide training in the upcoming months.  Some 

offices may have to amend their 16/17 case reports starting last October for the upcoming 

2017/18 budget year. 

 
Other Budget Issues:  
 
 
Senate Presentation 
 
On January 12, 2017, Chair Butterfield presented to the Senate Appropriations Committee an overview of 
the Florida Clerks of Court budget. The CCOC and FCCC worked closely on preparing for the presentation. 
The presentation provided a budget background of clerks’ budgets, an overview of the 2016-17 budget, 
information on how the clerks are funded, some of the new requirements placed on clerks and other 
budget concerns, and the impacts of insufficient revenues.  
 
A copy of the presentation is provided as an attachment.   
  
 
Revenue Estimating Conference 
 
The Article V Revenue Estimating Conference met on February 16, 2017. For the COC Trust Fund, the 
conference adopted a number of $372.3, down $11.7 million from $384 million adopted at the November 
Conference, and continuing to decrease in the out years. In total, the COC Trust Fund is estimated to have 
declined $13.9 million from $386 million adopted at the July Conference. The drop on revenues was 
expected. The FCCC and CCOC Legislative leadership teams are continuing to work on possible funding 
solutions during the upcoming Legislative Session.  Additionally, Chair Butterfield and CCOC staff will 
continue to closely monitor the revenues and will provide additional information for consideration at the 
March Budget Committee meeting.   
 
Council Action:  Confirm or Revise the recommendation from Budget Committee on budget timeline as 
provided below. 
 

Summary of Budget Committee Actions: 

 Clerk Smith made a motion for a memo to be sent to Clerks from Chair Butterfield, asking for any 
input regarding the peer group review study to be submitted to CCOC by close of business 
December 16th. Clerk Timmann seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

 Clerk Burke made a motion for the operational budget forms to be sent to Clerks from CCOC staff 
by December 16th and set a deadline for submission on January 13th, 2017 and also allow Chair 
Butterfield to work with CCOC staff to adjust this timeline if necessary. Clerk Vick seconded the 
motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

85 of 179



  
 
    

  Agenda Item 6b  • Page 5 of 5 
 

 Clerk Burke made a motion to disburse the CFY 2015-16 settle-up dollars to Clerks first, then 
disburse the December deficit disbursement to the funded Clerks as dollars are available in the 
trust fund and adopt this as a policy moving forward. 

 Motion made by Clerk Timmann to set the initial budget submission deadline for May 1, 2017. 
The remainder of the draft timeline can be set and revised at Chair Butterfield’s discretion. 

 
Attachments:  

1. Agenda Budget Committee December 7, 2016 
2. Draft Summary Budget Committee Meeting Minutes December 7, 2016 
3. JAC Schedule VIIb Reduction 
4. JAC Budget Reduction Proposal Letter 
5. DRAFT CFY2017-18 Budget Timeline 
6. Final Presentation for Senate Appropriations  
7. REC Article V Schedule for Clerks 

Lead Staff: 
Jason Harrell, CCOC Budget and Communications Director 

86 of 179



 

 

 

 

      

 
CCOC Budget Committee Workshop followed by Meeting 

Agenda 
Date: December 07, 2016 

Time: 10:00 AM ET 
Location: TCC Capitol Center, 300 West Pensacola St. Tallahassee, FL 32301 

Meeting Room: # 111 
 

Honorable Sharon R. Bock, Esq. 
Palm Beach County 

Chair 
 

Honorable Ken Burke 
Pinellas County 

Vice Chair 
 

Honorable Stacy Butterfield, CPA 
Polk County 

Secretary/Treasurer 
 

Honorable Bob Inzer 
Leon County 

 
Honorable Jeffrey R. Smith, CPA 

Indian River County 
 

Honorable John Crawford 
Nassau County 

 
Honorable Harvey Ruvin 

Dade County 
 

Honorable Tim Sanders 
Madison County 

 
Supreme Court 

Honorable Ron Ficarrotta 
13th Judicial Circuit Judge 

 
Senate  

Honorable Kyle Hudson 
Holmes County 

 
House 

Honorable Paula S. O’Neil Ph.D 
Pasco County 

 
Joe Boyd, Esq. 

General Counsel 
 

John Dew 
Executive Director 

 
2560-102 Barrington Circle 
Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

Phone: 850.386.2223 
Fax: 850.386.2224 

 

Budget Committee Workshop: Beginning December 07, 2016 at 10:00 AM (ET) 
(The workshop is open to all interested in attending.  This event is a workshop, and there is no call in capability 
 for this event.) 
 

1) Call to Order and Introduction .................................................................................. Stacy Butterfield 
 

2) Review Summary of October 13 Meeting and Update on Action Items (Pg.1-6)  .... Johnna Kauffman 
 

3) Update and Presentation on Peer Group Review Study(Pg.7-8) ........................................ Bo Shippen 
 

4) Update on CFY 2016-17 Operational Budget Forms(Pg.9) ........................................ Stacy Butterfield 
  
5) Update on Clerks’ Trust Fund(Pg.10-12) .............................................................................. John Dew 

 
6) Update on Juror Funding(Pg.13) .......................................................................................... John Dew 

 
7) Summary of November 16 Revenue Estimating Conference Meeting(Pg.14) ............... Doug Isabelle 

 
8) State Budget Issues(Pg.15-16) ........................................................................................ Jason Harrell 

 
9) Discussion of CFY 2017-18 Budget Timeline(Pg.17-18) ............................................ Johnna Kauffman  

 
10) Discussion of CFY 2017-18 Budget Issues(Pg.19) ............................................................ Jason Harrell 

 
11) Update on Workgroups: 

 
a. Base Budget Workgroup(Pg.20) .................. Carolyn Timmann and Jason Harrell 
b. Health Care Workgroup(Pg.21-22) ..................... Pam Childers and Jason Harrell 
c. Case Count Workgroup(Pg.23-24) .......................... Ken Burke and Doug Isabelle 

 
12) Discuss list of Additional Studies/Research Projects(Pg.25-27)  ............................... Stacy Butterfield 

 
13) Other Business .......................................................................................................... Stacy Butterfield 

 

 
 
Budget Committee Meeting (See agenda above): Beginning December 07, 2016 at 2:00 PM (ET)  
(The meeting time is subject to change. Please visit the CCOC website (www.flccoc.org) for the latest 
information. The meeting is open to all interested in attending. Call in capability will be available for full 
participation. Call in: 1-904-512-0115 and Conference code: 412463) 
 
 

Committee Members: Stacy Butterfield, Chair; Bob Inzer, Vice-Chair; Sharon Bock; Dwight Brock; Ken Burke; Pam 
Childers; Kellie Connell; John Crawford; Kyle Hudson; JD Peacock, Jeffery Smith; Brent Thurmond; Carolyn 
Timmann; and Angela Vick. 

 
 
CCOC Mission Statement: “As a governmental organization created by the Legislature, we evaluate Clerks’ court-
related budgetary needs, and recommend the fair and equitable allocation of resources needed to sustain court 
operations.” 
 

87 of 179

http://www.flccoc.org/


 

 

Agenda Item 6b Executive Council Meeting February 27, 2017  

Date: February 27, 2017 

Subject: Summary of December 07, 2016 Budget Committee Meeting 
 
 
The Budget Committee of the Clerks of Court Operations Corporation (CCOC) held a meeting in Tallahassee 

on December 07, 2016. An agenda and materials were distributed in advance of the December 07 meeting 

and posted on the CCOC website.  

Provided below is a summary of staff notes from the meeting. These staff notes are designed simply to 

document committee action, not to be a full record of committee discussions. All motions adopted by the 

committee are in bold text. All action items based on committee direction are in red and bold text.  

Notes from December 07, 2016 Meeting 

1) Call to Order and Introduction 

 
The meeting on December 07 was called to order at approximately 2:15 PM ET. Members 
in attendance during the meeting included: Clerk Butterfield, Chair; Clerk Inzer, Vice-Chair; 
Clerk Burke; Clerk Childers; Clerk Connell; Clerk Crawford; Clerk Peacock; Clerk Smith; Clerk 
Timmann; and Clerk Vick. 

 

2) Review Summary of October 13 Meeting and Update on Action Items 

Clerk Childers made a motion to approve the minutes from the October 13 meeting. Clerk Vick 

seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

3)  Update and Presentation on Peer Group Review Study 

 Bo Shippen, from Economists Incorporated presented a preliminary review and discussion for the 2016 

peer group review study currently in process. He provided a review of the 2012 and 2014 reports and 

discussed challenges encountered in modeling the previous reports, model changes under consideration for 

the 2016 report, and additional suggestions that have been brought forward by Clerks and CCOC staff. Mr. 

Shippen stated that he anticipated to have a preliminary report ready sometime in January. The committee 

then had an opportunity to comment or ask questions and thought it would be best to give all Clerks the 

opportunity to provide feedback regarding the study.  

Clerk Smith made a motion for a memo to be sent to Clerks from Chair Butterfield, asking for any input 

regarding the peer group review study to be submitted to CCOC by close of business December 16th. Clerk 

Timmann seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

 

88 of 179



 
 
   6b Attachment • February 27, 2017 

  Agenda Item  • Page 2 of 3 
 

4) Update on CFY 2016-17 Operational Budget Forms 

During the workshop, Chair Butterfield provided an update regarding the CFY 2016-17 operational budget 

forms. The committee discussed a timeline for the forms to be sent out and submitted by Clerks, as well.  

Clerk Burke made a motion for the operational budget forms to be sent to Clerks from CCOC staff by 

December 16th and set a deadline for submission on January 13th, 2017 and also allow Chair Butterfield to 

work with CCOC staff to adjust this timeline if necessary. Clerk Vick seconded the motion. Motion passed 

unanimously. 

Action Item: CCOC staff to disburse the CFY 2016-17 operational budget forms to Clerks on December 16th 

with a January 13th, 2017 deadline and work with Chair Butterfield if any changes need to be made to this 

timeframe. 

5) Update on Clerks’ Trust Fund 

John Dew provided an update regarding the balance of the trust fund and the pending disbursements 

needing to be made soon, including the CFY 2015-16 settle-up and the December deficit payment. The 

committee discussed the need to prioritize those disbursements and possibly making it a policy for future 

fiscal years so that it does not have to be voted on each year. Mr. Dew also provided an update regarding 

reported revenues collected for September and October of CFY 2016-17. 

Clerk Burke made a motion to disburse the CFY 2015-16 settle-up dollars to Clerks first, then disburse the 

December deficit disbursement to the funded Clerks as dollars are available in the trust fund and adopt 

this as a policy moving forward. Clerk Thurmond seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

Action Item: CCOC staff to contact DOR regarding the priority of disbursements. 

6) Update on Juror Funding 

John Dew provided an update on the juror funding and explained how any carryforward from the first 

quarter of funding will be taken into consideration when allocating dollars statewide for the 3rd quarter 

disbursement. Mr. Dew also noted that CCOC staff are working closely with JAC staff to ensure a smooth 

process going into quarter 4. 

7) Summary of November 16 Revenue Estimating Conference Meeting 

Doug Isabelle provided a review of the November 16 REC meeting. CCOC staff projected a lower amount 

than the previous meeting and the conference adopted a reduced revenue projection from the July 

meeting, projecting further declines for out years.  

8) State Budget Issues 

Jason Harrell provided an update on the state fiscal outlook and changes that were discussed by the House, 

in November, indicating that the predicted revenue shortfalls may happen earlier than anticipated, in this 

fiscal year versus out years. 

9) Discussion of CFY 2017-18 Budget Timeline 

89 of 179



 
 
   6b Attachment • February 27, 2017 

  Agenda Item  • Page 3 of 3 
 

Chair Butterfield discussed the draft timeline provided in the meeting materials and asked for feedback 

regarding moving the budget submission date back to an earlier date for the CFY1718 budget process to 

give CCOC staff and the Budget Committee more time to analyze the data. 

Motion made by Clerk Timmann to set the initial budget submission deadline for May 1, 2017. The 

remainder of the draft timeline can be set and revised at Chair Butterfield’s discretion. Clerk Crawford 

seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.  

10) Discussion of CFY 2017-18 Budget Issues 

This agenda item is addressed in the draft budget timeline from agenda item 9. 

90 of 179



91 of 179



92 of 179



93 of 179



Justice Administrative Commission

Proposed 10 Percent Cuts

Target - $10,524,098

Original 

Appropriation

Proposed 

Reduction

Remaining 

Appropriation

*1 Jury Costs (Line Item 772A) 11,700,000.00$   9,627,158.50$   2,072,841.50$      

*2 Legal Rep for Dependent Children w/ Special Needs (Line Item 773) 2,022,500.00       98,600.00           1,923,900.00$      

*3 Criminal Conflict Case Costs (Line Item 780) 27,984,827.00     798,339.50         27,186,487.50$    

Total 41,707,327.00     10,524,098.00   31,183,229.00      

KEY:

1. Reduced this new appropriation related to jury cost reimbursement to the Clerks of Court.  

2. Aligned rates ($1,000/year) with those paid to court-appointed attorneys in state-funded Civil Dependency representation 

     ($800/first year, $200/each subsequent year) $98,600 1st year. Second year reduction are projected to be an additional $429,400. 

3a. Aligned recently increased JAC Court Reporter Appearance Fees - First Hour ($75/appearance) with average rate found in the 

     20 judicial circuit's State Court Reporting Contracts ($60.50/appearance) - $83,969.50.

3b. Reduced recently increased per page rate by $.25 per page listed in Line Item 780, 2. & 3.  - $347,613.

3c. Reduced 18 recently increased Criminal Conflict Attorney Flat Fees by 10 percent - $366.757.

Note:  The proposed reductions are futher explained on the following pages, and the reduction for Jury Costs represents the difference

between the target and the sum of the other reductions.

94 of 179



Projected New Appointments 2017-18 (1) 880                    

Percentage of Cases Appointed and Paid in 2017-18 (2) 56%

Projected Number of Payments Made FY 2017-18 for Cases Appointed 2017-18 493                    

Possible Savings Reducing Attorney Fee from $1000 to $800 for New Appointments (3) 98,600.00$       

Possible Savings @ $800 for Cases Appointed and Paid in 2018-19 (4) 98,600.00$       

Possible Savings @ $800 for Cases Appointed in 2017-18 and Paid in 2018-19 (5) 77,400.00$       

Possible Savings @ $200 for Second Year of Representation (6) 352,000.00$    

528,000.00$    

(2)Based on payment data for cases appointed and paid in FY 2015-16.

(3) The projected number of payments for 2017-18 appointments * $200 savings per case

(4) Same projections as 2017-18

(5) Remaining cases that were appointed in 2017-18 but not paid

Projected Savings 2017-18

Projected Savings 2018-19

(1) Based on comparison of appointments made July-November in Fiscal Years 2015-16 and 2016-17.  The number of 

appointments stayed consistant between the two years, therefore, we are projecting the same number of new 

appointments in 2017-18.

(6) Based on payment data for cases appointed in 2014-15.  Of the 1,075 cases appointed in 2014-15 where an 

attorney fee has been paid, 539 (50%) have been paid for at least 1 additional year of representation.  The savings is 

based on the current rate of $1000 for each year of representation reduced to $200.

Dependent Children with Special Needs (Category 103220)

95 of 179



Court Reporters - Appearance Fees

PAID FY OF SERVICE DATE VS AFTER

NUMBER OF $75 

APPEARANCE FEES TOTAL PAID

FY OF SERVICE DATE 5,791 435,000.00$    

AFTER FY OF SERVICE DATE 770 57,750.00$       

TOTAL 6,561 492,750.00$    

Applying $14.50 reduction per appearance fee paid in the year of service 83,969.50$       

96 of 179



Court Reporters - Per Page Rates

RATE UNITS AMOUNT PAID 5% SAVINGS 10% SAVINGS 15% SAVINGS

$.50 SAVINGS 

PER PAGE

PERCENTAGE 

SAVINGS AT 

$.50 PER 

PAGE

4.00$         278,925 1,115,684.00$     55,784.20$      111,568.40$    167,352.60$    139,462.50$    12.50%

5.00$         399,927 1,999,630.00$     99,981.50$      199,963.00$    299,944.50$    199,963.50$    10.00%

5.50$         9,874 54,307.00$          2,715.35$         5,430.70$         8,146.05$         4,937.00$         9.09%

6.50$         3,084 20,046.00$          1,002.30$         2,004.60$         3,006.90$         1,542.00$         7.69%

7.50$         2,897 21,727.50$          1,086.38$         2,172.75$         3,259.13$         1,448.50$         6.67%

8.50$         519 4,411.50$             220.58$            441.15$            661.73$            259.50$            5.88%

TOTAL 695,226 3,215,806.00$     160,790.30$    321,580.60$    482,370.90$    347,613.00$    10.81%

97 of 179



Criminal Conflict Case Costs - Flat Fees

CASE DESCRIPTION (Multiple Items)

PAID YEAR OF APPT VS AFTER # OF CASES % OF CASES AMOUNT PAID # OF CASES % OF CASES AMOUNT PAID

YEAR OF APPOINTMENT 6,740 99.87% 3,667,570.00$                           9 0.13% 67,133.50$       6,749 3,734,703.50$            

AFTER YEAR OF APPOINTMENT 4,136 97.99% 2,752,020.00$                           85 2.01% 639,811.49$    4,221 3,391,831.49$            

TOTAL 10,876 99.14% 6,419,590.00$                           94 0.86% 706,944.99$    10,970 7,126,534.99$           

Applying 10% reduction for flat fees paid in the year of appointment 366,757.00$                              

Case Types FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 Option at 10% (with Rounding)

3.850 / 3.800 Postconviction 1,000                  1,250              1,125.00                                     

Contempt Proceedings 400                      500                  450.00                                        

Criminal Traffic 400                      500                  450.00                                        

Extradition 500                      625                  560.00                                        

Felony & Misdemeanor - No Info 400                      500                  450.00                                        

Felony - 2nd Degree 1,000                  1,250              1,125.00                                     

Felony - 3rd Degree 750                      935                  840.00                                        

Juvenile Delinquency - No Info 300                      375                  340.00                                        

Juvenile Delinquency - Felony Life 700                      875                  790.00                                        

Juvenile Delinquency - 1st Degree Felony 600                      750                  675.00                                        

Juvenile Delinquency - 2nd Degree Felony 400                      500                  450.00                                        

Juvenile Delinquency - 3rd Degree Felony 300                      375                  340.00                                        

Juvenile Delinquency - Misdemeanor 300                      375                  340.00                                        

Misdemeanor 400                      500                  450.00                                        

VOP - Felong (Includes VOCC) 500                      625                  560.00                                        

VOP - Misdemeanor (Includes VOCC) 300                      375                  340.00                                        

VOP - Misdemeanor (Includes VOCC)(CT) 300                      375                  340.00                                        

VOP [VOCC] Juvenile Delinquency 300                      375                  340.00                                        

EXTRAORDINARY
Total # OF CASES Total AMOUNT PAID

Rates

FLAT

98 of 179



2016-17 2017-18 Clerk Court-Related Budget Process Timeframe 

DRAFT- (Red is suggested revisions) 

March 2016 January 2017 

1. CCOC Budget Committee WG meets and develops recommendations for budget process revisions.  (March 3, 2016) 

2. CCOC Budget Committee Meets to begin discussion of budget revision ideas. (March 14, 2016) 

3. Suggested revisions provided to Clerks for feedback.  (Week of March 21st) 

4. CCOC Budget Committee meets to approve make decisions on revisions to process and forms.  (Week of March 28th.) 

April 2016 February 2017 

1. CCOC Budget Committee meets to make decisions on revisions to process.  April 5th 

2. CCOC Executive Committee or Council meets to approve revisions to budget process and forms.  (Week of April 11th or 

following week.) 

3. CCOC sends out budget instructions and forms for CFY 16/17 17/18 budget to Clerks. (Week of April 18th or following 

week.) 

4. CCOC provides training sessions on revised process to Clerks.  

May 2016March 2017 

1. CCOC provides regional training and assistance to Clerks in completing the budget forms. 

June 2016April 2017 

1. Clerks submit their initial budget request to CCOC. (June 1, 2016) 

2. Peer 3 & 4 Review. (June 22nd.) 

3. Peer 1 & 2 Review. (July 7th.) 

4. Peer 5 & 6 Review. (July 12th)  

5. Clerks can meet together with CCOC staff to help review data. 

May 2017 

1. Clerks can resubmit final budget request 

July 2016June and July 

1. CCOC Budget Committee meets as needed to review data and seek additional information ing for two days the week of 

July 18th. 

2. Peer 1 & 2 Review 

3. Peer 3 & 4 Review 

4. Peer 5 & 6 Review  

5. Development of Legislative Budget Commission Request Document.  

6. CCOC Executive Council review and approve budget request recommendations the week of July 25th.  

August 

1. CCOC submits budget request for 67 Clerks to the Legislative Budget Commission. (August 1st.) 

2. Information provided to LBC staff as requested.  

September 

1. LBC expected to meet during this month to review budget request. 

2. CCOC meets as necessary to allocate budget authority for individual Clerks. 

October 

1. Clerks’ budget year begins.  

67

99 of 179



Florida Clerks of Court Budget 
Overview

Senate Appropriations Committee

Clerks of Court Operations Corporation

Presenter:  

Honorable Stacy Butterfield, CPA
Polk County Clerk & Comptroller

Chair, CCOC Budget Committee

January 12, 2017 100 of 179



Introduction

 The Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation (CCOC) 
was created by the Florida Legislature.

 CCOC performs the statutory responsibility to review and 
certify court-related budgets for all 67 Clerks of Court.

101 of 179



Budget Background

 Prior to 2009:  Clerks were outside of the state budget and 
were funded through distribution of fines, fees and costs.

 2009:  Clerks became part of the state budget, which changed 
the entire process including revenue distribution.

 2009-2013: Legislative appropriation authority required 
backfill of approximately $150 M due to insufficient 
statutorily designated revenue sources.

 2009-10:  $18.6 M 

 2010-11:  $44.2 M

 2011-12:  $57.6 M

 2012-13:  $29.5 M

102 of 179



Budget Background

 2013-Present:  Clerks taken back out of the state budget.

 Statutorily designated revenue sources continue to result in 
shortfalls, for which a long-term solution was not addressed 
due to other state priorities.

 Clerks received some financial relief through appropriations 
for jury administration and budget backfill.

 2015-16:  $15.8 M

 2016-17:  $11.7 M  

103 of 179



Clerks’ Budgets 2013-Present

104 of 179



 Minimum Needs-Based Budget: $459 M

 Available Revenue:  $422 M 

 Current Revenue Shortfall:              $37 M

CFY 2016-17 Budget

105 of 179



Revenues by Court Type

106 of 179



New Requirements Placed on Clerks

 2012: Redaction of Records is Required  (s. 119.0714, F.S.)

 2013: E-Filing Mandated in Civil Cases  (SC11-399)

 2014: Electronic Record on Appeal is Required (SC15-765)

 2014: E-Filing Mandated in Criminal Cases (AOSC13-48)

 2015: Public Access to Records Mandated (Rule 2.420, RJA)

107 of 179



Budget Concerns
Health Benefit and FRS Costs Continue to Increase

108 of 179



Insufficient Revenue Impacts

 Public Safety

 Criminal History

 Mental Health- firearm possession

 Timely Incarceration and Release

 Commerce 

 Access to Court

 Disbursements

 Service Delays

109 of 179



Questions?

January 12, 2017 110 of 179



Article V REC 

2/16/2017

Local Government Fines/Fees/Charges Schedule for Clerks

(Millions)

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun TOTAL

SFY16/17 32.7 29.8 32.2 33.0 28.6 28.2 34.7 31.5 31.6 32.2 30.4 29.8 374.7

SFY17/18 30.5 29.2 32.5 29.2 29.0 28.1 28.7 31.7 31.8 32.3 30.5 29.9 363.5

SFY18/19 30.3 29.0 32.3 29.0 28.8 27.9 28.5 31.5 31.5 32.1 30.3 29.7 361.1

SFY19/20 30.4 29.1 32.4 29.1 28.9 28.0 28.6 31.6 31.7 32.3 30.4 29.9 362.4

SFY20/21 30.5 29.2 32.5 29.2 28.9 28.1 28.7 31.7 31.7 32.3 30.5 29.9 363.4

SFY21/22 30.6 29.3 32.6 29.3 29.0 28.2 28.8 31.8 31.8 32.4 30.6 30.0 364.3

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep TOTAL

LFY 16/17 33.0 28.6 28.2 34.7 31.5 31.6 32.2 30.4 29.8 30.5 29.2 32.5 372.3

LFY 17/18 29.2 29.0 28.1 28.7 31.7 31.8 32.3 30.5 29.9 30.3 29.0 32.3 362.9

LFY 18/19 29.0 28.8 27.9 28.5 31.5 31.5 32.1 30.3 29.7 30.4 29.1 32.4 361.5

LFY 19/20 29.1 28.9 28.0 28.6 31.6 31.7 32.3 30.4 29.9 30.5 29.2 32.5 362.7

LFY 20/21 29.2 28.9 28.1 28.7 31.7 31.7 32.3 30.5 29.9 30.6 29.3 32.6 363.6

LFY 21/22 29.3 29.0 28.2 28.8 31.8 31.8 32.4 30.6 30.0 30.7 29.4 32.7 364.5

111 of 179



 

 

 
FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS 

CORPORATION 
 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FEBRUARY 27, 2017 
 
  

AGENDA ITEM #6c 
REPORT ON CCOC PIE  COMMITTEE  

112 of 179



Agenda Item 6c Executive Council Meeting February 27, 2017  

Date: February 21, 2017 

Subject: Agenda Item 6c: PIE Report 
 

Committee Action: 
Review and approve (1) Qtr. 4 15/16 Action Plan Report and (2) CFY 2015/16 Collection Agent 
Report. 
 
Overview/Background: 
On February 8, 2017 the PIE Committee met via conference call.  The Committee approved two 
reports to be moved to the Executive Council for final approval and distribution.  Additionally, 
the Committee welcomed new members and discussed the status of several ongoing projects. 
 

(1) Quarter 4 (July-Dec) 2015/16 Action Plan Report (See Attachment) 
Section 28.35(2)(d), F.S. requires the Corporation to develop measures and performance 
standards and when it finds a Clerk has not met the performance standards, the Corporation 
shall identify the nature of each deficiency and any corrective action recommended and taken 
by the affected Clerk of the Court.  The Corporation is also required to notify the Legislature of 
any Clerk not meeting performance standards and provide a copy of any corrective action 
plans. 
 
During Qtr. 4 (July-September 2016) seventeen (17) or 25% of Clerk offices met or exceeded 
performance standards for all measures in the areas of collections, timeliness, and juror 
payments. (Alachua, Brevard, Charlotte, Collier, Flagler, Franklin, Glades, Gulf, Hardee, Holmes, 
Indian River, Jackson, Jefferson, St. Johns, St. Lucie, Sumter, and Suwannee).  The remaining 50 
counties required at least one action plan and collectively required 129 action plans across all 
performance measures or 61 less action plans from the previous quarter.  
 
The number of action plans while less than the previous quarter is not indicative of improved 
performance, but rather it shows a picture of the Clerks’ work priorities and staffing issues from 
quarter to quarter. 
 
 

113 of 179



 
  PIE Committee • February 21, 2017 

  Agenda Item 6c • Page 2 of 3 

 
Quarter 4 Highlights 
 
Collections: 

 The number of action plans decreased from the previous quarter from 103 to 90. 

 Most of the decrease action plans occurred in the criminal divisions. 

 Civil traffic court remained unchanged with 31 action plans or 35% of all collection plans 
required. 

 The circuit criminal court division exceeded the 9% standard.  This is due this quarter to less 
mandatory drug assessments with prison sentences. 

 When adjusting the mandatory drug trafficking assessments 12 counties would have met the 
standard.  For example, Clay county collection rate for quarter 4 was 8.49%.  However, adjusting 
for drug trafficking the collection rate was 27.48%. 

 
Timeliness: 

 The total number of timeliness action plans increased slightly from the previous quarter from 34 
to 36. Filing cases timely declined by 1 but was offset by an increase of 3 action plans for not 
docketing cases timely.  

 Most of the reasons (34 of 36) action plans was because of staffing issues. 

 Circuit civil court division dipped below the statewide standard for the second quarter in a row. 

 All civil court divisions are showing declining performance from the end of last year. 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Qtr. 4 15/16 Performance & Action Plans Report for distribution and 
posting on the CCOC website. 
 
 

(2) Collection Agent CFY 2015/16 Annual Report (See Attachment) 
Section 28.246(6), F.S. authorizes the Clerk of Court to pursue the collection of any fees, service charges, 
fines, court costs, and liens for the payment of attorney fees and costs which remain unpaid after 90 
days by referring the account to a private attorney or collection agent. 
 
During CFY 2015/16 the Clerks reported that they sent approximately $308.8 million collectively to their 
collection agencies.  Over half ($207.2 m.) of the unpaid accounts were related to criminal cases.  Most 
of the remaining unpaid accounts ($97.8 m.) were related to traffic. About $74 m. was collected during 
this time period mostly from traffic ($46.7 m.) and another ($26.9 m.) from criminal cases.  Keep in mind 
that collections received during this time period maybe associated with unpaid accounts from prior 
years. 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the CFY 2015/16 Annual Collection Agents Report for distribution and 
posting on the CCOC website. 
 
 

Ongoing Projects 
 
The Committee discussed two ongoing project. 
 

1) Performance and Accountability Clerk (PAC):  The goal of the project is “Tell the Clerks’ 
Story” as it pertains to their court-related duties and responsibilities.  Specifically, the 

114 of 179



project will identify all the legally authorized Clerks’ court-related services, activities, 
and task.  Additionally, it will identify the customers for these services, performance of 
these activities, and to tie costs and revenues.  It is intended to show that without 
adequate funding Florida citizens, the courts, public safety, and commerce will be 
adversely impacted. 
 
Tentative schedule 

 Nine court-related services; 35 activities, and over 420 tasks that cut across all 10 
court divisions. (completed) 

 Finalize legal authorities (March) 

 Costing project (March) 

 Revenue identification (April/May) 

 Performance measures (Summer 2017) 
 
 

2) Weighting subcases:  The goal of the project is to weight subcases within court-divisions 
based on complexity of work involved to process a case from cradle to grave.  The Work 
Group has met several time and developed a draft inventory of subcases with some 
initial weighting.  However, finalizing weights is dependent on the work Clerk Burke is 
doing pertaining to ensuring that Clerks are reporting new cases consistently which 
ongoing.  The Work Group will get back together to complete its work and provide its 
recommendations to the PIE and Budget Committees.  There will be a need to amend 
the current outputs report to include subcases. 

115 of 179



 

 

 

 
Quarterly 

Performance Measure and 
 Action Plans Report 

Section 28.35(2)(d) Florida Statutes 

 
4th Quarter County Fiscal Year 2015 / 2016 

 
(July 1, 2016 through September 30, 2016) 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

February, 2017 
 

 
 
 

 

116 of 179



 
 

 

CFY 2015/2016 4TH QUARTER ACTION PLAN 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

BACKGROUND 1 

COLLECTIONS  

STATEWIDE PERFORMANCE SUMMARY 2 

STATEWIDE PERFORMANCE BY REASON CODE 3 

INTERNAL COLLECTION ACTION PLANS REQUIRED 3 

STATEWIDE PERFORMANCE BY COURT DIVISION 4 

HISTORIC COLLECTION RATES 5 

DRUG TRAFFICKING COLLECTION SUMMARY 5 

TIMELINESS  

STATEWIDE PERFORMANCE SUMMARY 

o TIMELINESS 1 - NEW CASES FILED 7 

o TIMELINESS 2 - CASES DOCKETED 7 

 

STATEWIDE PERFORMANCE BY REASON CODE  8 

o TIMELINESS 1 - NEW CASES FILED 9 

o TIMELINESS 2 - CASES DOCKETED 9 

o TIMELINESS 1 & 2 INTERNAL ACTION PLANS REQUIRED 10 

  

STATEWIDE PERFORMANCE BY COURT DIVISION  

o TIMELINESS 1 - NEW CASES FILED 12 

o TIMELINESS 2 - CASES DOCKETED 12 

 

HISTORIC TIMELINESS 1 & 2 RATES 13 

JURY PAYMENT  

STATEWIDE ACTION PLANS REQUIRED 15 

STATEWIDE ACTION PLANS BY REASON CODE 15 

 

117 of 179



 

CFY 2015/2016 4TH QUARTER ACTION PLAN 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

APENDIXES   

A: COUNTY PERFORMANCE BY DIVISION – COLLECTIONS 16 

 

B: DRUG TRAFFICKING CASES - ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION BY COUNTY 18   

 

C: COUNTY PERFORMANCE BY DIVISION –TIMELINESS 1 (NEW CASES FILED) 20 

 

D: COUNTY PERFORMANCE BY DIVISION –TIMELINESS 2 (DOCKET ENTRIES) 22 

 

E: EXTERNAL FACTORS / DESCRIPTIONS PROVIDED FOR NOT MEETING  

      PERFORMANCE STANDARDS (COLLECTIONS, TIMELINESS 1, TIMELINESS 2) 24 

  

F: COUNTY PERFORMANCE BY DIVISION – JURY PAYMENT 28 

  

   

118 of 179



 

 

 

Performance Measure & Quarterly Action Plan Background 
 
The Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation (CCOC) was created as a public corporation to perform 
the functions specified in Sections 28.35 and 28.36, Florida Statutes. Section 28.35 (2)(d), F.S. requires 
CCOC to develop a uniform system of performance measures and applicable standards in consultation with 
the Legislature. These measures and standards are designed to facilitate an objective determination of the 
performance of each clerk in fiscal management, operational efficiency, and effective collection of fines, 
fees, service charges, and court costs. Current performance measures address: 
 

 Collections (one measure each for nine court divisions, reported quarterly) 

 Timeliness (two measures for each of ten court divisions, reported quarterly) 

 Juror Payment Processing (one measure, reported quarterly) 

 Fiscal Management (one measure, reported annually) 
 

When the CCOC finds a Clerk’s office has not met the performance standards, CCOC identifies the nature 
of each deficiency and any corrective action recommended and taken by the affected Clerk of the Court. 
The CCOC is required to notify the Legislature of any clerk not meeting performance standards and provide 
a copy of any corrective action plans. 
 
CCOC monitors the performance of the Clerk’s offices through quarterly reports provided by the Clerk’s 
offices, due on the 20th of the month following the end of the quarter. CCOC provides notification of the 
status of the Clerks’ performance standards to the Legislature through these quarterly reports. 
 
The quarterly report for the 4th quarter of CFY 2015/2016 provides information about the performance of 
the Clerks of Courts on standards relating to collections, timeliness and juror payment management.  The 
report identifies the Clerk’s offices not meeting each performance standard.  In addition, the report provides 
a description of factors that may have contributed to the standard not being met. For the 4th quarter, CFY 
2015/2016, seventeen (17) or 25.3% Clerks met or exceeded performance standards for all measures in 
the areas of collections, timeliness, and juror payment: 
 
Alachua, Brevard, Charlotte, Collier, Flagler, Franklin, Glades, Gulf, Hardee, Holmes, Indian River, 

Jackson, Jefferson, St. Johns, St. Lucie, Sumter, Suwannee. 

The remaining 50 counties required at least one action plan which are described in the following pages. 

 

119 of 179



Collections – Statewide Performance CFY 2015/16; 4th Quarter 
 
  

 

 

 

 

        

Collection Performance by Reason Code 

 

Pursuant to Executive Council direction on October 6, 2015, the “Reason Codes” chosen for not meeting a statewide 

Collection performance measure were amended to clarify what was under the control of the Clerk’s office and what was 

not. The new reason codes are: 

  “Internal” – Reasons are inter-office and controllable. Internal reasons will require an “Action to Improve” and a 

detailed explanation of the reason why the standard was not met and an expected duration of time to have this 

reason resolved. 

  

 “External” – Factors outside of office management and/or process control. External Reasons will not require an 

Action to Improve but must have a detailed explanation of the external reason why the Collection Performance 

Standard was not met. 

 

At or Above Standard
85%

Below Standard
15%

Collections - Statewide Action Plans

Court Divisions at or Above Standard 513 

Court Divisions Below Standard (Action Plans Required) 90 

Potential Action Plans Required 603 

120 of 179



Collections – Statewide Performance CFY 2015/16; 4th Quarter 
 
  

Of the 90 action plans where the collection standard was not met, 18 (20%) were classified as within the control of the 

Clerk. A list of the 18 action plans is found below. The remaining 72 (80%) action plans were outside the control of the 

Clerks’ offices. A list of these external reasons are found in Appendix E. 

  

 

 

 

# County Division Plan to Improve 

1 Bradford Circuit Criminal We are now allowing defendants to pay on-line. 

2 Broward Civil Traffic 
Reduced hours of operation at our service windows and closed DHSMV payment 
locations because of budget reductions impact our collections efforts. 
Improvement in collection performance is anticipated in the next quarter. 

3 Clay Circuit Criminal 
Defect in Report with our CMS- Tyler Technologies.  OCF User Group is working 
with Tyler on a solution. 

4 Gilchrist Civil Traffic Staffing issues 

5 Manatee Civil Traffic 
Have manually rebuilt majority of financial codes/need to complete.  Additional 
time may be needed before seeing improvement to percentage rate. 

6 Marion Circuit Criminal 
Unable to create an action plan to improve.  We are following procedures set by 
the Best Practices Committee. 

7 Marion County Criminal 
Unable to create an action plan to improve.  We are following procedures set by 
the Best Practices Committee. 

8 Osceola Civil Traffic 
Osceola County continues to successfully collect and increase revenues for Traffic 
Citations. Each quarter the percentage improves due to the implementation of 
partial payment plans.  We should meet the standard by the next quarter. 

9 Pinellas County Criminal 
We are continuing to streamline and improve our collection efforts.  Reallocating 
and training new staff in better methods of collection. 

18

72

Internal

External

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

Collections - Action Plans by Reason 
Code

Reason Code Action 
plans 

 

Internal 18 

External 72 

Total 90 

The 18 Action Plans 

required due to internal 

reasons are below. 

121 of 179



Collections – Statewide Performance CFY 2015/16; 4th Quarter 
 
  

10 Pinellas 
Juvenile 
Delinquency 

Refining processes and looking for additional ways of improving our collections 
and by the next reporting period we hope to meet our standards. 

11 Pinellas Civil Traffic 
Implementing new methods/ways of collecting fines/costs with staff and how 
they are addressing defendants out of court, at our counters and by phone. 

12 Sarasota Circuit Criminal 
Intense management of existing payment plans and further utilization of 
collection agencies expected to improve collection rates in 2017. 

13 Sarasota County Criminal 
Intense management of existing payment plans and further utilization of 
collection agencies expected to improve collection rates in 2017. 

14 Sarasota Civil Traffic 
Intense management of existing payment plans and further utilization of 
collection agencies expected to improve collection rates in 2017. 

15 Seminole Civil Traffic Additional funding to hire staff 

16 Walton Circuit Criminal 
Larger mandatory drug assessments in addition to incarcerations. See additional 
notes. 

17 Washington 
Juvenile 
Delinquency Increase our collection efforts 

18 Washington Civil Traffic Increase our collection efforts 

 

Collection Performance by Court Division 

As shown below the civil traffic court division continues to exceed (35%) all other court divisions for not meeting 

collection standards. Criminal court cases also continue to be a challenge to collect. 

 

 
 

Circuit 
Criminal

21%

County 
Criminal

26%

Juvenile Delinquency
13%

Criminal 
Traffic

2%

Circuit Civil
3%

Civil Traffic
35%

Collections - Action Plans per Court 
Division 

Division Action 
Plans 

 

Circuit Criminal 19 

County Criminal 23 

Juvenile 
Delinquency 

12 

Criminal Traffic 2 

Circuit Civil 3 

County Civil 0 

Civil Traffic 31 

Probate 0 

Family 0 

Total 90 

122 of 179



Collections – Statewide Performance CFY 2015/16; 4th Quarter 
 
  

The table below shows that from the beginning of CFY 2015/16 through the 4th quarter all criminal court divisions 

showed a slight increase in collection performance. However, county criminal remains below the performance standard. 

The civil court divisions remained well above the collection standards from the beginning of the year through the 4th 

quarter.  Civil traffic court division continues to remain well below the collection standard throughout the year.  

Compared to last year overall collection performance saw modest improvement. 

(2nd quarter note: One county reported data error that was corrected in the 3rd quarter.) 

 

Recognizing the large percentage of drug trafficking assessments filed in the Circuit Criminal court division, the CCOC 

Executive Council approved further analysis of how these assessments and collections would affect the collection rate in 

the Circuit criminal division. 

 After adjusting the drug trafficking mandatory assessments and collections; the statewide Circuit Criminal 

court division collection rate increased from 9.48% to 15.20%. 

 

 Of the 19 counties that did not meeting the 9.0% collection standard, 12 of these counties would have met 

the standard once the drug trafficking assessment and collection data was removed. Those counties are: 

 

 

Court 
Division 

CFY 
2014/15 
Year End 

 CFY 2015/16 
1st Quarter 

CFY 2015/16 
2nd Quarter 

CFY 2015/16 
3rd Quarter 

CFY 
2015/16 

4th 
Quarter 

Standard 

Circuit 
Criminal 

8.19%  8.81% 4.36% * 7.99% 9.48% 9.00% 

Circuit 
Criminal (No 
Trafficking)* 

NA  14.77% 8.62% 13.89% 15.20% NA 

County 
Criminal 

38.54%  36.89% 29.86% 38.35% 37.71% 40.00% 

Juvenile 
Delinquency 

17.34%  15.35% 16.56% 17.97% 15.41% 9.00% 

Criminal 
Traffic 

61.27%  63.26% 53.16% 65.69% 65.55% 40.00% 

        

Circuit Civil 98.91%  99.03% 98.94% 99.06% 99.21% 90.00% 

County Civil 99.54%  99.64% 99.63% 99.46% 99.52% 90.00% 

Civil Traffic 84.65%  85.66% 84.46% 85.13% 84.49% 90.00% 

Probate 99.10%  99.16% 99.21% 98.83% 99.40% 90.00% 

Family 96.12%  96.52% 97.05% 96.88% 96.68% 75.00% 

Statewide 67.61%  67.47% 52.68% 66.35% 68.26%  

123 of 179



Collections – Statewide Performance CFY 2015/16; 4th Quarter 
 
  

o Clay: Total Circuit Criminal Rate: 8.49% / Rate omitting Drug Trafficking: 27.48% 

o Duval: Total Circuit Criminal Rate: 6.63% / Rate omitting Drug Trafficking: 10.64% 

o Escambia: Total Circuit Criminal Rate: 8.68% / Rate omitting Drug Trafficking: 10.64% 

o Marion: Total Circuit Criminal Rate: 6.68% / Rate omitting Drug Trafficking: 14.28% 

o Osceola: Total Circuit Criminal Rate: 6.13% / Rate omitting Drug Trafficking: 11.18% 

o Palm Beach: Total Circuit Criminal Rate: 6.11% / Rate omitting Drug Trafficking: 12.79% 

o Pasco: Total Circuit Criminal Rate: 4.85% / Rate omitting Drug Trafficking: 18.30% 

o Polk: Total Circuit Criminal Rate: 6.40% / Rate omitting Drug Trafficking: 13.67% 

o Putnam: Total Circuit Criminal Rate: 2.39% / Rate omitting Drug Trafficking: 10.34% 

o Sarasota: Total Circuit Criminal Rate: 7.72% / Rate omitting Drug Trafficking: 18.01% 

o Volusia: Total Circuit Criminal Rate: 6.92% / Rate omitting Drug Trafficking: 9.49% 

o Walton: Total Circuit Criminal Rate: 7.09% / Rate omitting Drug Trafficking: 14.47% 

 

A complete table of the results seen by each county by removing the drug trafficking data from the Circuit Criminal 

division is found in Appendix B. 

124 of 179



Timeliness - Statewide Performance CFY 2015/16; 4th Quarter  
 

New Cases Filed 

 

 

 

Cases Docketed 

 

 

 

 

At or Above 
Standard

97%

Below Standard
3%

Timeliness 1 - Statewide Action Plans

At or Above 
Standard

98%

Below Standard
2%

Timeliness 2 - Statewide Action Plans

Court Divisions At or Above Standard 650 

Court Divisions Below Standard (Action Plans Required) 20 

Potential Action Plans Required 670 

Court Divisions At or Above Standard 654 

Court Divisions Below Standard (Action Plans Required) 16 

Potential Action Plans Required 670 

125 of 179



Timeliness - Statewide Performance CFY 2015/16; 4th Quarter  
 
 

Timeliness Performance by Reason Codes 

Pursuant to Executive Council direction on October 6, 2015, the “Reason Codes” chosen for not meeting a statewide 

Timeliness (filing cases timely and entering dockets timely) performance measures were amended to clarify what was 

under the control of the Clerk’s office to correct and what was not. The reason codes are: 

 

  “Staffing - Internal”: Reason is inter-office and controllable. Internal Staffing reasons will require an “Action to 

Improve” and a detailed explanation of the reason why the standard was not met and an expected duration of 

time to have this reason resolved. 

  

 “Staffing External”: Staffing factors outside of office management and/or process control. External Staffing 

Reasons will not require an Action to Improve but must have a detailed explanation of the external reason why 

the Timeliness Performance Standard was not met. 

 

 “Systems / Conversions - Internal”: Reason is inter-office and controllable. Internal System reasons will require 

an “Action to Improve” including all factors noted above. 

 

 “Systems – Conversions - External”: System / Conversion is outside of office management and/or process 

control. External Systems / Conversion reasons will not require an Action to Improve but must have a detailed 

explanation of the external reason why the Timeliness Performance Standard was not met. 

 

 “Unfunded Mandates - External”: Federal, State and / or local mandates outside of office management and/or 

process control. Unfunded Mandate reason(s) will not require an Action to Improve but must have a detailed 

explanation of the external reason why the Timeliness Performance Standard was not met. 

 

Timeliness 1 (Cases Filed) - Performance by Reason Code 

Of the 20 action plans required for not filing cases timely 75% of them the Clerks reported were in their control to 

correct.  And of the 16 action plans required for not docketing cases timely again 75% of them the Clerks reported were 

also in their control to correct.  All of the internal reasons generally related to inadequate staffing. The remaining 9 

action plans the Clerks reported were not in their control to correct and these reasons are found in Appendix E. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

126 of 179



Timeliness - Statewide Performance CFY 2015/16; 4th Quarter  
 

 

  

Timeliness 2 (Docket Entries) Performance by Reason Code 

  

 

 

 

 

 

15

3

2

Staffing - Internal

Staffing - External

Systems/Conversions - Internal

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16

Timeliness 1 - Action Plans by 
Reason Code

Staffing -
Internal, 12

Staffing -
External, 4

1

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14

Timeliness 2 (Docket Entries) 
Performance by Reason Code

Reason Code Action 
Plans 

Staffing – Internal 15 

Staffing – External 3 

System / Conversion 
- Internal 

2 

System / Conversion 
– External 

0 

Unfunded Mandates 
- External 

0 

Total 20 

Reason Code Action 
Plans 

Staffing – Internal 12 

Staffing – External 4 

System / Conversion - 
Internal 

0 

System / Conversion – 
External 

0 

Unfunded Mandates - 
External 

0 

Total 16 

127 of 179



Timeliness - Statewide Performance CFY 2015/16; 4th Quarter  
 

Timeliness 1 (Case Processing) – Internal Office Action Plans 

  County Division Reason Code Action Plan to Improve 

1 Broward Circuit Civil  Staffing Positions being filled and 
training of staff being 
conducted 

2 Broward Probate Staffing Additional case filers are 
needed in order to meet 
the 80% standard. 

3 Columbia County Criminal Staffing Down 1.0 FTE in this area 
and one experienced 
employee left to work for 
Court Admin with higher 
pay. 

4 Columbia Criminal Traffic Staffing Down 1.0 FTE in this area 
and one experienced 
employee left to work for 
Court Admin with higher 
pay. 

5 Dixie Circuit Criminal Staffing Need more staff 

6 Gadsden Criminal Traffic Staffing Insufficient staff available 

7 Levy Criminal Traffic Staffing Understaffed 

8 Madison Circuit Criminal Staffing Staff will work to meet 
the demands of the 
increased volume. 

9 Madison Criminal Traffic Staffing Staff will work to meet 
the demands of the 
volume. 

10 Miami-Dade Criminal Traffic Staffing Unable to meet standard 
due to reduced staffing as 
a result of budget cuts 

11 Miami-Dade Circuit Civil Staffing Unable to meet standard 
due to reduced staffing as 
a result of budget cuts 

12 Miami-Dade Civil Traffic Staffing Unable to meet standard 
due to reduced staffing as 
a result of budget cuts 

13 Okaloosa Criminal Traffic Staffing Undergoing 
reorganization due to 
budget constraints 

14 Wakulla County Criminal Staffing At this time, we are doing 
what we can with all the 
resources have been 
given. 

15 Wakulla Juvenile Delinquency Staffing At this time, we are doing 
what we can with all the 
resources have been 
given. 

128 of 179



Timeliness - Statewide Performance CFY 2015/16; 4th Quarter  
 

 

 Timeliness 2 (Docket Entry) – Internal Office Action Plans 
 

County Division Reason Code Action Plan to Improve 

1 Broward Probate Staffing As budgets permit, 
additional staffing is 
needed to consistently 
meet the 80% standard. 

2 Broward Family Staffing Positions being filled and 
training of staff. 

3 Columbia County Criminal Staffing Down 1.0 FTE in this area 
and one experienced 
employee left to work for 
Court Admin with higher 
pay. 

4 Columbia Criminal Traffic Staffing Down 1.0 FTE in this area 
and one experienced 
employee left to work for 
Court Admin with higher 
pay. 

5 Gadsden Criminal Traffic Staffing Insufficient staff available. 

6 Levy Circuit Civil Staffing Understaff No Budget to 
pay. 

7 Levy  Probate Staffing Understaff No Budget to 
pay. 

8 Levy Family Staffing Understaff No Budget to 
pay. 

9 Marion Family Staffing Staff turnover, training 
new hires, transferred 
one FTE to Family to meet 
standards. 

10 Miami-Dade Circuit Civil Staffing Unable to meet standard 
due to reduced staffing as 
a result of budget cuts. 

11 Monroe Juvenile Delinquency Staffing Filled vacancy position. 

12 Okeechobee Juvenile Delinquency Staffing E-Portal-delay in the 
acceptance of cases thru 
the E-Portal. 

 

 

 

 

129 of 179



Timeliness - Statewide Performance CFY 2015/16; 4th Quarter  
 

Timeliness 1 (Cases Filed) - Performance by Court Division 

As shown below the criminal court divisions (circuit, county, juvenile and traffic) accounted for a majority of all action 

plans for not filing cases timely.  Most (30%) of these action plans occurred in criminal traffic. 

  
 

 Timeliness 2 (Docket Entry) - Performance by Court Division 

As shown below the probate court division accounted for a quarter of the action plans for not meeting docketing cases 

timely.   

 

Circuit Criminal
15%

County Criminal
10%

Juvenile 
Delinquency

10%

Criminal Traffic
30%

Circuit Civil
15%

Civil Traffic
5%

Probate
15%

Timeliness 1 - Action Plans by Court 
Division

County 
Criminal

12%

Juvenile 
Delinquency

12%

Criminal 
Traffic
19%Circuit Civil

12%

Probate
25%

Family
19%

Timeliness 2 - Action Plans by 
Court Division

Division Action 
Plans 

Circuit Criminal 3 

County Criminal 2 

Juvenile Delinquency 2 

Criminal Traffic 6 

Circuit Civil 3 

County Civil 0 

Civil Traffic 1 

Probate 3 

Family 0 

Juvenile Dependency 0 

Total 20 

Division Action 
Plans 

Circuit Criminal 0 

County Criminal 2 

Juvenile Delinquency 2 

Criminal Traffic 3 

Circuit Civil 2 

County Civil 0 

Civil Traffic 0 

Probate 4 

Family 3 

Juvenile Dependency 0 

Total 16 

130 of 179



Timeliness - Statewide Performance CFY 2015/16; 4th Quarter  
 
The table below, shows that from the beginning of CFY 2015/16 through the 4th quarter except for criminal traffic the 

criminal courts maintained and/or exceeded filing cases timely.  This is not unexpected because of criminal due process 

rules. In contrast, offices are seeing a decrease in meeting standards in the civil divisions. Most notably, circuit civil 

performance slipped about 15% from the beginning of the year to below the standard. Compared to CFY 2014/15 all civil 

divisions showed a decrease in performance. In response to budget reductions, Clerk offices are prioritizing resources 

for the criminal divisions that may have been utilized to meet the civil timeliness standards previously.   

 

Court Division 
CFY 2014/15 

Year End 
 CFY 

2015/16 1st 
Quarter 

CFY 
2015/16 

2nd Quarter 

CFY 
2015/16 3rd 

Quarter 

CFY 
2015/16 4th 

Quarter 

Standard 

Circuit Criminal 97.52%  97.73% 97.75% 97.98% 98.09% 80% 

County Criminal 95.38%  96.39% 96.49% 94.69% 95.20% 80% 

Juvenile 
Delinquency 

96.53% 
 

96.82% 97.57% 98.04% 97.54% 
80% 

Criminal Traffic 97.04%  94.48% 87.99% 86.59% 90.53% 80% 

        

Circuit Civil 90.64% 
 

91.63% 89.30% 77.47% 76.69% 80% 

County Civil 95.43% 
 

94.41% 97.04% 94.95% 94.34% 80% 

Civil Traffic 95.59%  95.75% 91.22% 89.70% 90.70% 80% 

Probate 95.45%  94.69% 96.03% 94.73% 95.03% 80% 

Family 97.43%  97.43% 96.38% 96.90% 96.96% 80% 

Juvenile 
Dependency 

98.03% 
 

97.76% 96.50% 96.43% 97.50% 
80% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

131 of 179



Timeliness - Statewide Performance CFY 2015/16; 4th Quarter  
 
Like the Timeliness 1 measure, many court divisions are maintaining strong rates of meeting entering dockets timely 

from the beginning of the year. Again, the Criminal Divisions are meeting the standard regularly to ensure a defendant’s 

right to due process. However, Clerk offices are also seeing a decrease in their civil court divisions especially in the circuit 

civil division. Compared to CFY 2014/15 except for dependency court; civil divisions showed a decrease in performance. 

In response to budget reductions, Clerk offices are prioritizing resources for the criminal divisions that may have been 

utilized to meet the civil timeliness standards previously.   

 

 

 

 

Court 
Division 

CFY 
2014/15 
Year End 

 CFY 2015/16 
1st Quarter 

CFY 2015/16 
2nd Quarter 

CFY 2015/16 
3rd Quarter 

CFY 2015/16 
4th Quarter 

Standard 

Circuit 
Criminal 

95.10% 
 

95.14% 96.05% 95.43% 95.31% 
80% 

County 
Criminal 

94.99% 
 

94.25% 96.31% 95.81% 95.52% 
80% 

Juvenile 
Delinquency 

96.37% 
 

96.24% 95.25% 91.81% 97.46% 
80% 

Criminal 
Traffic 

94.91% 
 

95.90% 95.79% 95.46% 
95.15% 

 
80% 

        

Circuit Civil 95.10% 
 

91.34% 89.15% 85.78% 88.40% 
80% 

County Civil 96.52% 
 

88.32% 91.98% 94.50% 95.26% 
80% 

Civil Traffic 96.74%  96.58% 96.66% 96.22% 96.41% 80% 

Probate 95.23%  90.84% 96.51% 94.57% 94.84% 80% 

Family 94.40%  93.42% 93.44% 91.47% 92.66% 80% 

Juvenile 
Dependency 

93.84% 
 

94.56% 96.55% 96.19% 94.20% 
80% 

132 of 179



Jury Payments – Statewide Action Plans Required  
 

 

 

 

 
 

Jury Payment Action Plans by Reason Code 

The performance standard for timely juror payment is 100% payment of jurors within 20 days of final jury attendance. 

The reason codes for not meeting the performance standard were not changed from the previous reporting cycle.  

 

At or Above 
Standard

96%

Below Standard
4%

Juror Payment - Statewide Action Plans

0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1

Procedural

Systems

Other

Juror Payment - Action Plans by Reason Code

Court Divisions At or Above Standard 64 

Court Divisions Below Standard (Action Plans Required) 3 

Potential Action Plans Required 67 

Reason Code Plans 

Staffing-Workload 0 

Staffing - Training 0 

Systems 1 

Procedural 1 

Other 1 

Total 3 

133 of 179



Appendix A: Collections Performance by Division

County Reporting Quarter Circuit Criminal County Criminal Juvenile Delinquency Criminal Traffic Circuit Civil County Civil Civil Traffic Probate Family Total

Alachua Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Baker Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External External 3

Bay Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External External 3

Bradford Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Internal 1

Brevard Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Broward Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External Internal 2

Calhoun Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External 1

Charlotte Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Citrus Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Clay Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Internal 1

Collier Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Columbia Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External 1

Dade Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External 2

Desoto Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External 1

Dixie Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External External 3

Duval Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External External 3

Escambia Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External 2

Flagler Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Franklin Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Gadsden Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External 2

Gilchrist Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Internal 1

Glades Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Gulf Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Hamilton Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External 1

Hardee Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Hendry Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External 2

Hernando Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External 1

Highlands Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External 2

Hillsborough Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External External 3

Holmes Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Indian River Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Jackson Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Jefferson Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Lafayette Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External 1

Lake Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External 1

Lee Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External 2

Leon Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External External 3

Levy Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External 1

Liberty Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External External 3

Madison Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External External 3

Manatee Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External Internal 2

Marion Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Internal Internal 2

Martin Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

134 of 179



Appendix A: Collections Performance by Division

County Reporting Quarter Circuit Criminal County Criminal Juvenile Delinquency Criminal Traffic Circuit Civil County Civil Civil Traffic Probate Family Total

Monroe Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Nassau Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External 1

Okaloosa Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External 1

Okeechobee Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External 1

Orange Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External External 3

Osceola Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External Internal 2

Palm Beach Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External External 3

Pasco Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External 1

Pinellas Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Internal Internal Internal 3

Polk Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External External 3

Putnam Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External External 3

Santa Rosa Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External 1

Sarasota Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Internal Internal Internal 3

Seminole Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Internal 1

St. Johns Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

St. Lucie Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Sumter Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Suwannee Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Taylor Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External 1

Union Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External 2

Volusia Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External External External 3

Wakulla Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External 1

Walton Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Internal 1

Washington Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 External Internal Internal 3

Statewide 19 23 12 2 3 0 31 0 0 90

Internal Reasons 5 3 2 0 0 0 8 0 0 18

External Reasons 14 20 10 2 3 0 23 0 0 72

135 of 179



Appendix B

Drug Traffic Assessment and Collections Affect on Circuit Criminal Collection Rate

CFY 2015/16 4th Quarter Analysis

Circuit Criminal Drug Trafficking Circuit Criminal Net

CountyName Assessment Collection % Assessment Collection % Assessment Collection %

Alachua 477,391.10$          108,356.23$      22.70% 107,334.00$                            -$                                0.00% 370,057.10$          108,356.23$      29.28%

Baker 65,110.90$            8,055.41$           12.37% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 65,110.90$            8,055.41$           12.37%

Bay 993,184.09$          80,700.81$         8.13% $262,520.00 89.00$                            0.03% 730,664.09$          80,611.81$         11.03%

Bradford 237,930.64$          18,855.47$         7.92% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 237,930.64$          18,855.47$         7.92%

Brevard 779,508.53$          110,478.31$      14.17% $213,337.00 320.00$                          0.15% 566,171.53$          110,158.31$      19.46%

Broward 3,336,726.72$       342,672.51$      10.27% $251,730.35 $4,424.62 1.76% 3,084,996.37$       338,247.89$      10.96%

Calhoun 66,423.00$            7,493.00$           11.28% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 66,423.00$            7,493.00$           11.28%

Charlotte 203,490.85$          59,589.23$         29.28% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 203,490.85$          59,589.23$         29.28%

Citrus 663,865.43$          64,773.37$         9.76% $320,410.00 $912.04 0.28% 343,455.43$          63,861.33$         18.59%

Clay 913,609.00$          77,557.00$         8.49% $631,410.00 2.00$                              0.00% 282,199.00$          77,555.00$         27.48%

Collier 446,218.92$          91,515.38$         20.51% $160,325.29 $410.89 0.26% 285,893.63$          91,104.49$         31.87%

Columbia 168,677.73$          23,621.33$         14.00% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 168,677.73$          23,621.33$         14.00%

Desoto 150,714.39$          27,793.48$         18.44% 100.00$                                    -$                                0.00% 150,614.39$          27,793.48$         18.45%

Dixie 16,465.00$            2,525.00$           15.34% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 16,465.00$            2,525.00$           15.34%

Duval 2,391,343.40$       158,647.19$      6.63% $907,722.39 840.78$                          0.09% 1,483,621.01$       157,806.41$      10.64%

Escambia 1,473,606.12$       127,963.57$      8.68% $589,864.38 204.00$                          0.03% 883,741.74$          127,759.57$      14.46%

Flagler 156,877.00$          16,865.34$         10.75% $50,668.00 -$                                0.00% 106,209.00$          16,865.34$         15.88%

Franklin 38,668.00$            4,063.16$           10.51% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 38,668.00$            4,063.16$           10.51%

Gadsden 88,443.00$            13,332.94$         15.08% $32,934.00 $9,702.37 29.46% 55,509.00$            3,630.57$           6.54%

Gilchrist 29,260.00$            5,379.00$           18.38% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 29,260.00$            5,379.00$           18.38%

Glades 18,176.35$            7,746.85$           42.62% 250.00$                                    -$                                0.00% 17,926.35$            7,746.85$           43.21%

Gulf 88,939.31$            9,189.14$           10.33% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 88,939.31$            9,189.14$           10.33%

Hamilton 47,740.75$            6,549.03$           13.72% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 47,740.75$            6,549.03$           13.72%

Hardee 114,260.47$          17,397.35$         15.23% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 114,260.47$          17,397.35$         15.23%

Hendry 65,312.00$            23,696.31$         36.28% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 65,312.00$            23,696.31$         36.28%

Hernando 495,981.51$          59,331.85$         11.96% $54,045.00 -$                                0.00% 441,936.51$          59,331.85$         13.43%

Highlands 333,429.75$          18,647.15$         5.59% $54,568.00 -$                                0.00% 278,861.75$          18,647.15$         6.69%

Hillsborough 6,657,692.00$       617,623.00$      9.28% $3,850,168.00 $255.88 0.01% 2,807,524.00$       617,367.12$      21.99%

Holmes 230,800.81$          23,913.72$         10.36% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 230,800.81$          23,913.72$         10.36%

Indian River 358,265.78$          34,607.32$         9.66% $53,893.50 -$                                0.00% 304,372.28$          34,607.32$         11.37%

Jackson 143,370.37$          19,968.65$         13.93% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 143,370.37$          19,968.65$         13.93%

Jefferson 11,830.00$            2,536.45$           21.44% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 11,830.00$            2,536.45$           21.44%

Lafayette 45,702.00$            2,185.43$           4.78% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 45,702.00$            2,185.43$           4.78%

Lake 980,076.35$          102,964.36$      10.51% 250,000.00$                            -$                                0.00% 730,076.35$          102,964.36$      14.10%

Lee 968,129.00$          110,451.00$      11.41% $455,300.00 $1,614.00 0.35% 512,829.00$          108,837.00$      21.22%

Leon 1,202,674.94$       229,679.01$      19.10% $217,199.74 $854.09 0.39% 985,475.20$          228,824.92$      23.22%

Levy 51,635.05$            11,442.47$         22.16% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 51,635.05$            11,442.47$         22.16%

Liberty 23,095.50$            1,673.77$           7.25% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 23,095.50$            1,673.77$           7.25%

Madison 144,093.50$          10,318.44$         7.16% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 144,093.50$          10,318.44$         7.16%

Manatee 712,624.92$          90,382.77$         12.68% 52,918.00$                              -$                                0.00% 659,706.92$          90,382.77$         13.70%

Marion 2,778,601.53$       185,673.06$      6.68% $1,485,838.89 $1,122.46 0.08% 1,292,762.64$       184,550.60$      14.28%

Martin 400,510.93$          42,728.39$         10.67% $110,594.00 -$                                0.00% 289,916.93$          42,728.39$         14.74%

Miami-Dade 2,643,864.00$       377,015.00$      14.26% $110,169.00 $10,562.00 9.59% 2,533,695.00$       366,453.00$      14.46%

Monroe 234,192.00$          71,547.00$         30.55% $66,909.39 $29,174.20 43.60% 167,282.61$          42,372.80$         25.33%

Nassau 73,018.50$            11,645.95$         15.95% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 73,018.50$            11,645.95$         15.95%

Okaloosa 867,583.00$          101,121.18$      11.66% $160,946.50 $94.50 0.06% 706,636.50$          101,026.68$      14.30%

Okeechobee 175,207.61$          19,339.55$         11.04% 50,000.00$                              -$                                0.00% 125,207.61$          19,339.55$         15.45%

136 of 179



Appendix B

Drug Traffic Assessment and Collections Affect on Circuit Criminal Collection Rate

CFY 2015/16 4th Quarter Analysis

Circuit Criminal Drug Trafficking Circuit Criminal Net

CountyName Assessment Collection % Assessment Collection % Assessment Collection %

Orange 3,048,174.00$       348,794.00$      11.44% $875,128.58 $3,551.50 0.41% 2,173,045.42$       345,242.50$      15.89%

Osceola 2,927,355.93$       179,419.08$      6.13% $1,353,358.87 $3,505.87 0.26% 1,573,997.06$       175,913.21$      11.18%

Palm Beach 3,129,184.51$       191,264.73$      6.11% $1,634,113.15 -$                                0.00% 1,495,071.36$       191,264.73$      12.79%

Pasco 3,791,011.22$       183,818.93$      4.85% $2,786,575.00 -$                                0.00% 1,004,436.22$       183,818.93$      18.30%

Pinellas 3,022,480.00$       294,306.00$      9.74% $1,220,273.00 -$                                0.00% 1,802,207.00$       294,306.00$      16.33%

Polk 3,517,611.74$       225,097.74$      6.40% $1,872,489.00 $156.42 0.01% 1,645,122.74$       224,941.32$      13.67%

Putnam 756,996.42$          18,125.85$         2.39% $581,945.00 26.48$                            0.00% 175,051.42$          18,099.37$         10.34%

Santa Rosa 545,709.92$          60,364.79$         11.06% $264,240.00 -$                                0.00% 281,469.92$          60,364.79$         21.45%

Sarasota 1,344,651.89$       103,856.35$      7.72% $767,971.57 -$                                0.00% 576,680.32$          103,856.35$      18.01%

Seminole 1,181,488.78$       156,551.05$      13.25% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 1,181,488.78$       156,551.05$      13.25%

St. Johns 303,990.79$          43,034.67$         14.16% $106,036.00 -$                                0.00% 197,954.79$          43,034.67$         21.74%

St. Lucie 1,069,370.96$       100,949.38$      9.44% $455,200.50 $157.71 0.03% 614,170.46$          100,791.67$      16.41%

Sumter 271,716.19$          29,555.97$         10.88% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 271,716.19$          29,555.97$         10.88%

Suwannee 192,032.29$          20,074.59$         10.45% $54,338.37 $1,898.00 3.49% 137,693.92$          18,176.59$         13.20%

Taylor 140,169.12$          15,921.40$         11.36% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 140,169.12$          15,921.40$         11.36%

Union 24,826.50$            4,609.76$           18.57% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 24,826.50$            4,609.76$           18.57%

Volusia 1,846,956.32$       127,764.43$      6.92% $503,062.54 $179.59 0.04% 1,343,893.78$       127,584.84$      9.49%

Wakulla 61,871.46$            15,819.00$         25.57% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 61,871.46$            15,819.00$         25.57%

Walton 294,292.00$          20,874.00$         7.09% 150,000.00$                            -$                                0.00% 144,292.00$          20,874.00$         14.47%

Washington 197,479.50$          10,206.50$         5.17% -$                                          -$                                #DIV/0! 197,479.50$          10,206.50$         5.17%

Statewide 60,231,691.29$    5,710,020.15$   9.48% 23,125,887.01$                      70,058.40$                    0.30% 37,105,804.28$    5,639,961.75$   15.20%

* NOTE 1 Shaded Counties meet Circuit Criminal collection standard once Drug Trafficking assessments and collecvtion amounts are removed.

137 of 179



Appendix C: Timeliness Standard 1 (New Cases Opened) Performance by Division

County Reporting Quarter Circuit Criminal County Criminal

Juvenile 

Delinquency Criminal Traffic Circuit Civil County Civil Civil Traffic Probate Family

Juvenile 

Dependency Total

Alachua Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Baker Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Bay Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Bradford Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Brevard Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Broward Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - Internal Staffing - Internal 2

Calhoun Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Charlotte Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Citrus Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - External 1

Clay Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Collier Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Columbia Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - Internal Staffing - Internal 2

Dade Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - Internal Staffing - Internal Staffing - Internal 3

Desoto Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Dixie Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - Internal 1

Duval Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Escambia Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Flagler Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Franklin Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Gadsden Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - Internal 1

Gilchrist Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Glades Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Gulf Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Hamilton Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Hardee Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Hendry Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - External 1

Hernando Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Highlands Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Hillsborough Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Holmes Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Indian River Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Jackson Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Jefferson Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Lafayette Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Lake Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - External 1

Lee Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Leon Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Levy Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - Internal 1

Liberty Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Madison Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - Internal Staffing - Internal 2

Manatee Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Marion Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Martin Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

138 of 179



Appendix C: Timeliness Standard 1 (New Cases Opened) Performance by Division

County Reporting Quarter Circuit Criminal County Criminal

Juvenile 

Delinquency Criminal Traffic Circuit Civil County Civil Civil Traffic Probate Family

Juvenile 

Dependency Total

Monroe Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Nassau Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Okaloosa Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - Internal 1

Okeechobee Qrt 4 7/1-9/30

Systems/Conversio

ns - External

Systems/Conversio

ns - External 2

Orange Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Osceola Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Palm Beach Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Pasco Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Pinellas Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Polk Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Putnam Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Santa Rosa Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Sarasota Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Seminole Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

St. Johns Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

St. Lucie Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Sumter Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Suwannee Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Taylor Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Union Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Volusia Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Wakulla Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - Internal Staffing - Internal 2

Walton Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Washington Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Statewide 3 2 2 6 3 0 1 3 0 0 20

Internal Reasons 2 2 1 6 2 0 1 1 0 0 15

External Reasons 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 5

139 of 179



Appendix D: Timeliness Standard 2 (Cases Docketed) Performance by Division

County Reporting Quarter Circuit Criminal County Criminal

Juvenile 

Delinquency Criminal Traffic Circuit Civil County Civil Civil Traffic Probate Family

Juvenile 

Dependency Total

Alachua Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Baker Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Bay Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Bradford Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Brevard Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Broward Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - Internal

Staffing - 

Internal 2

Calhoun Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Charlotte Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Citrus Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - External 1

Clay Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Collier Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Columbia Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - Internal Staffing - Internal 2

Dade Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - Internal 1

Desoto Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Dixie Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Duval Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Escambia Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Flagler Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Franklin Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Gadsden Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - Internal 1

Gilchrist Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Glades Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Gulf Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Hamilton Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Hardee Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Hendry Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - External Staffing - External 2

Hernando Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Highlands Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Hillsborough Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Holmes Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Indian River Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Jackson Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Jefferson Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Lafayette Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Lake Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - External 1

Lee Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Leon Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Levy Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - Internal Staffing - Internal

Staffing - 

Internal 3

Liberty Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Madison Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Manatee Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

140 of 179



Appendix D: Timeliness Standard 2 (Cases Docketed) Performance by Division

County Reporting Quarter Circuit Criminal County Criminal

Juvenile 

Delinquency Criminal Traffic Circuit Civil County Civil Civil Traffic Probate Family

Juvenile 

Dependency Total

Marion Qrt 4 7/1-9/30

Staffing - 

Internal 1

Martin Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Monroe Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - Internal 1

Nassau Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Okaloosa Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Okeechobee Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 Staffing - Internal 1

Orange Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Osceola Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Palm Beach Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Pasco Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Pinellas Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Polk Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Putnam Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Santa Rosa Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Sarasota Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Seminole Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

St. Johns Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

St. Lucie Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Sumter Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Suwannee Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Taylor Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Union Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Volusia Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Wakulla Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Walton Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Washington Qrt 4 7/1-9/30 0

Statewide 0 2 2 3 2 0 0 4 3 0 16

Internal Reasons 0 1 2 2 2 0 0 2 3 0 12

External Reasons 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 4

141 of 179



Appendix E: External Descriptions for not Meeting Performance Standards by Division

CFY 2015/16 Quarter 4 Collections and Timeliness -External Reasons Provided

Count County Division Action Plan to Improve / Description of External Factor Reason Code

1 Baker County Criminal
Our office sets up payment plans and follow up with contact and then suspend their drivers license upon failure to 

comply.  We are open to any recommendations.
External to Clerk's Control

2 Baker Criminal Traffic
Our office sets up payment plans and follow up with contact and then suspend their drivers license upon failure to 

comply.  We are open to any recommendations.
External to Clerk's Control

3 Baker Civil Traffic
At this time our office D6 the DL weekly and send all unpaid traffic citations to the collections agency on a monthly 

basis.  We are open for any suggestions that we may not be aware of that we can do.
External to Clerk's Control

4 Bay Circuit Criminal Bay County is using all methods at our disposal to collect fees. External to Clerk's Control

5 Bay County Criminal Bay County is using all methods at our disposal to collect fees. External to Clerk's Control

6 Bay Civil Traffic Bay County is using all methods at our disposal to collect fees.

7 Broward Juvenile Delinquency
Explore options with other state agencies, like State Attorney's Office,  to improve enforcement of court ordered 

assessments.
External to Clerk's Control

8 Calhoun County Criminal More than $4,000 / 27% of the assessments was converted to civil judgments. External to Clerk's Control

9 Columbia County Criminal
We had issues receiving payments in a timely manner from one of two probation offices.  It appears that these issues 

have been addressed.
External to Clerk's Control

10 Dade County Criminal
Due to our current economic conditions, many defendants are indigent or transient making collection efforts more 

difficult.
External to Clerk's Control

11 Dade Civil Traffic
We currently have a significant number of payment plans which extend the time required for full collection.  

Additionally a significant number of citations got to court which also delays collection times.
External to Clerk's Control

12 Desoto County Criminal
Although collections efforts were maintained, ability to pay was signifantly decreased.  Continue collection efforts for 

next quarter.

13 Dixie County Criminal We are doing everything possible External to Clerk's Control

14 Dixie Criminal Traffic We are doing everything possible External to Clerk's Control

15 Dixie Civil Traffic We are doing everything possible External to Clerk's Control

16 Duval Circuit Criminal Reviewing collection agency performance and other on-line payment options. External to Clerk's Control

17 Duval County Criminal Reviewing collection agency performance and other on-line payment options. External to Clerk's Control

18 Duval Civil Traffic Reviewing collection agency performance and other options to pay as well as enforcing 30 days to pay. External to Clerk's Control

19 Escambia Circuit Criminal
The ability to collect court costs and fines is dependent upon the local economy and ability to pay.  We have been 

working on an internal collections process in an effort to improve collections.  
External to Clerk's Control

20 Escambia Civil Traffic
The ability to collect traffic fines and court costs is impacted by the economic situation in the county.  We have been 

working with a new internal collections program to try to improve our collections.
External to Clerk's Control

21 Gadsden County Criminal
Due to budget cuts we had to cut a position out of this dept. We do not have the budget to fund the positions we need 

to maintain current level operations. We will continue to attempt to meet the standard using the recourse we have.
External to Clerk's Control

22 Gadsden Civil Traffic
We are a small office and are currently under staffed. We will continue to attempt to meet the standard using the 

resources we have at our disposal.
External to Clerk's Control

23 Hamilton Civil Traffic Many cases not paid, sent to collections in 90 days External to Clerk's Control

24 Hendry Juvenile Delinquency Most often choose community service rather than paying External to Clerk's Control

25 Hendry Civil Traffic External: Non-Pays External to Clerk's Control

26 Hernando Civil Traffic We are working with the new collection agency and are slowly coming up to standard. External to Clerk's Control

27 Highlands Circuit Criminal Prisoners do not pay until released from DOC. External to Clerk's Control

28 Highlands County Criminal Same County Judge - and no changes for the better in the economy of south central Florida. External to Clerk's Control

29 Hillsborough Circuit Criminal Continued dunning notice and collection agency process External to Clerk's Control

142 of 179



Appendix E: External Descriptions for not Meeting Performance Standards by Division

CFY 2015/16 Quarter 4 Collections and Timeliness -External Reasons Provided

Count County Division Action Plan to Improve / Description of External Factor Reason Code

30 Hillsborough County Criminal
Transitioning from private probation service provider to local sheriff has greatly improved collections and we will 

continue to monitor performance.
External to Clerk's Control

31 Hillsborough Civil Traffic Continued use of internal collection methods and referral to outside collection agencies. External to Clerk's Control

32 Lafayette Circuit Criminal The defendants were incarcerated. External to Clerk's Control

33 Lake County Criminal Lack of sufficient staffing due to continued budget cuts reduces ability to aggressively pursue delinquent accounts. External to Clerk's Control

34 Lee Juvenile Delinquency Uncollected court costs and Clerk fees have been referred to external collection agency under parent or guardian External to Clerk's Control

35 Lee Civil Traffic
Representative in the uncollected balance; 59% or $332k are toll cases and of those toll cases, 74% have been referred 

to a collection agency with DL suspension and 22% are on an active payment plan. 
External to Clerk's Control

36 Leon County Criminal

Leon County uses all methods of collections available to them for collecting on these criminal cases.  License suspension 

and submission to Collection Agency are two methods used.  Results of Collection Agency are outside of the 5 quarter 

accounting and are not credited to our collection rate.  Leon County will continue to monitor this.

External to Clerk's Control

37 Leon Circuit Civil
A change to this report occurred in 6/2013 which fixed a reporting error.  After fixing that error, it exposed the low 

collection rate among prisoner cases
External to Clerk's Control

38 Leon Civil Traffic
Question Standard.    Statistically speaking this is so close (1.04%) to the standard, that it should be counted as meeting 

the standard.
External to Clerk's Control

39 Levy Civil Traffic Economy External to Clerk's Control

40 Liberty Circuit Criminal Two felony DUI cases, defendants sentenced to serve time in jail, once released we will work collections.  External to Clerk's Control

41 Liberty Juvenile Delinquency
When a defendants term of supervision terminates they are placed on a payment plan to attempt to collect outstanding 

cost.
External to Clerk's Control

42 Liberty Circuit Civil Lien placed on inmates trust account to attempt collection of filing fee. External to Clerk's Control

43 Madison Circuit Criminal More timely remittances by DOC are needed. External to Clerk's Control

44 Madison County Criminal Defendants not paying need to be turned over to Collections staff. External to Clerk's Control

45 Madison Civil Traffic Encourage payment in full. External to Clerk's Control

46 Manatee County Criminal Area continues to be monitored and reviewed.  Best Practice guidelines followed - economy may play part in issue External to Clerk's Control

47 Nassau Civil Traffic Continue to suspend drivers license and send all unpaid fines to collection agency. External to Clerk's Control

48 Okaloosa Civil Traffic Due to budgetary cuts beyond our local control, our ability to prioritize collections in this case type are constrained. External to Clerk's Control

49 Okeechobee Civil Traffic Cases will be sent to collections External to Clerk's Control

50 Orange County Criminal
While we are working on projects to improve collections org-wide, our criminal area continues to show declines in 

rates, attributable to high underemployed society and struggles with cost increases locally.
External to Clerk's Control

51 Orange Juvenile Delinquency Unsure why rate dropped below 9%. We are beginning to see a trend in a decline. Dollars are immaterial for concern External to Clerk's Control

52 Orange Civil Traffic
Rate has gone from 85% to 80% from the prior quarters. This has to be attributable to external factors, similar to what is 

occurring in the other criminal case types
External to Clerk's Control

53 Osceola Circuit Criminal
Many Circuit Criminal Cases/defendants are sentenced to prison and ordered court costs and restitution.  These cases 

are assessed court costs however payments are not made due to the length of sentencing in DOC.
External to Clerk's Control

54 Palm Beach Circuit Criminal
Over $1.6 million in uncollectable drug trafficking assessments in this reporting period. Uncollectable due to defendants 

sentenced to long prison terms.
External to Clerk's Control

143 of 179



Appendix E: External Descriptions for not Meeting Performance Standards by Division

CFY 2015/16 Quarter 4 Collections and Timeliness -External Reasons Provided

Count County Division Action Plan to Improve / Description of External Factor Reason Code

55 Palm Beach County Criminal

Defendant's provided too much time to pay without being ordered onto a Clerk payment plan. Defendants on probation 

are not ordered to establish payment plans. Failure to pay as a condition does not have negative impact on successful 

completion of probation. Since meeting with the judges, we have seen an increase in payment plans. We expect the 

collection rate to increase as payment plan activity increases. 

External to Clerk's Control

56 Palm Beach Juvenile Delinquency
Defendants placed on  probation are not ordered to establish payment plans. Failure to pay  as a condition of probation  

is usually converted to community service.  
External to Clerk's Control

57 Pasco Circuit Criminal Mandatory assessments - Uncollectable drug trafficking External to Clerk's Control

58 Polk Circuit Criminal
The majority of this assessment is drug trafficking cases as can be seen on that tab and those typically don't get paid.  

When adjusting out those cases we meet the standard.
External to Clerk's Control

59 Polk County Criminal Lack of payments from customers. External to Clerk's Control

60 Polk Civil Traffic Lack of payments from customers. External to Clerk's Control

61 Putnam County Criminal
The local economy is not improving.  People have exhausted any savings and cannot pay.  We are in the pilot phase of 

implementing a new collection process for criminal cases to see if we can increase collections MORE than it costs us.

62 Putnam Juvenile Delinquency
Poor economy and demographics; high violence rate.  Judge will not press for collection due to perceived parental 

retaliation against juvenile.

63 Putnam Civil Traffic Extremely poor economic conditions continue.

64 Santa Rosa Civil Traffic
Partial payment agreements can go up to 18 months which is outside the reporting time frame. Civil citation issued 

along with a criminal citation is held until the disposition of the civil citation.
External to Clerk's Control

65 Taylor Juvenile Delinquency Juveniles are not paying External to Clerk's Control

66 Union Circuit Civil All unpaid cases are Department of Corrections inmate cases.  Order to Pay Fees have been entered in all cases. External to Clerk's Control

67 Union Civil Traffic All citations unpaid for the reporting period have been D-6'd and sent to collections. External to Clerk's Control

68 Volusia Circuit Criminal Increase the number of late pay and non-pay cases we are sending to collection agencies.  External to Clerk's Control

69 Volusia County Criminal Increase the number of late pay and non-pay cases we are sending to collection agencies.  External to Clerk's Control

70 Volusia Juvenile Delinquency Increase the number of late pay and non-pay cases we are sending to collection agencies.  External to Clerk's Control

71 Wakulla Juvenile Delinquency
We had an influx of cases, therefore the assessment amounts were much higher than other qrts. With these 

assessments very few paid and many did community service.
External to Clerk's Control

72 Washington Circuit Criminal Most are Incarcerated.   The incarceration collections is in place but not much to collected. External to Clerk's Control

CFY 2015/16 Quarter 4 Timeliness 1 (Case Processing) - External Reasons Provided
Count County Division Description Reason Code

1 Citrus Probate Unable to staff appropriately with budget cuts Staffing-External

2 Hendry Circuit Criminal Need increase in budget to hire more clerks and/or allow for overtime Staffing-External

3
Lake Probate

We continue to explore the reallocation of our reduced staff to assist in departments that are hurting the most.
Staffing-External

4 Okeechobee Juvenile Delinquency E-Portal-delay in the acceptance of cases thru the E-Portal. Systems - External

5 Okeechobee Circuit Civil E-Portal- delay in the acceptance of cases thru the E-Portal Systems - External

144 of 179



Appendix E: External Descriptions for not Meeting Performance Standards by Division

CFY 2015/16 Quarter 4 Collections and Timeliness -External Reasons Provided

Count County Division Action Plan to Improve / Description of External Factor Reason Code

CFY 2015/16 Quarter 4 Timeliness 2 (Docket Entry) - External Reasons Provided
Count County Division Description Reason Code

1 Citrus Probate Unable to staff appropriately with budget cuts Staffing-External

2 Hendry County Criminal Need increase in budget to hire more clerks and/or allow for overtime Staffing-External

3 Hendry Criminal Traffic Need increase in budget to hire more clerks and/or allow for overtime Staffing-External

4
Lake Probate

We continue to explore the reallocation of our reduced staff to assist in departments that are hurting the most.
Staffing-External

145 of 179



Appendix F - Juror Payment Performance

Alachua Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Baker Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Bay Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Bradford Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Brevard Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Broward Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Calhoun Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Charlotte Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Citrus Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Clay Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Collier Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Columbia Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Dade Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Desoto Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Dixie Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Duval Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Escambia Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Flagler Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Franklin Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Gadsden Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Gilchrist Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Glades Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Gulf Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Hamilton Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Hardee Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Hendry Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Hernando Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Highlands Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Hillsborough Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Holmes Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Indian River Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Jackson Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Jefferson Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Lafayette Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Lake Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Lee Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Leon Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

County Reporting Quarter Juror Payment All Courts

146 of 179



Appendix F - Juror Payment Performance

County Reporting Quarter Juror Payment All Courts

Levy Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Liberty Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Madison Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Manatee Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Marion Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Martin Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16 X - Procedural

Monroe Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16 X - Systems

Nassau Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16 X - Other

Okaloosa Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Okeechobee Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Orange Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Osceola Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Palm Beach Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Pasco Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Pinellas Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Polk Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Putnam Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Santa Rosa Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Sarasota Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Seminole Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

St. Johns Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

St. Lucie Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Sumter Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Suwannee Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Taylor Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Union Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Volusia Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Wakulla Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Walton Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Washington Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16

Statewide Qrt 4 7/1/16 - 9/30/16 3

147 of 179



 

 
 

Collection Agent Annual Report 
 

 
County Fiscal Year 2015 / 2016 

 
(October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016) 

 
January, 2017 

148 of 179



 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

SECTION 1 COLLECTION AGENTS UNDER CONTRACT  ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1 

SECTION 2 STATE-WIDE DATA SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS  ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 2 

SECTION 3 COLLECTIONS AGENT DATA BY COUNTY: 

ACCOUNTS SENT FOR COLLECTION ACTION   --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 3-5 

COLLECTIONS RECEIVED  ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 6-8 

 

149 of 179



SECTION ONE
COLLECTION AGENTS UNDER CONTRACT

County
Enter 

Contract Agent County
Enter 

Contract Agent County
Enter 

Contract Agent
Alachua Yes Pioneer-Credit Recovery, Inc Hendry Yes Pioneer-Credit Recovery, Inc Pasco Yes Penn Credit
Baker Yes Pioneer Credit Recovery Hernando Yes Aspen Pinellas Yes Linebarger, Goggan, Blair and Sampson, LLP
Bay yes Penn Credit Hernando Yes Linebarger Pinellas Yes Penn Credit Corporation
Bradford Yes Pioneer Collections Agency Hernando No MSB Polk Yes Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson. LLP
Brevard Yes Linebarger Highlands Yes Penn Credit Corp. Polk Yes Penn Credit Corporation
Brevard No MSB Agency Highlands Yes Pioneer Credit Recovery Putnam Yes Pioneer Credit Recovery
Brevard Yes MSB Navient Hillsborough Yes LINEBARGER GOGGAN BLAIR & SAMPSON LLP Santa Rosa Yes Penn
Brevard Yes Pioneer Credit Hillsborough Yes PENN CREDIT CORPORATION Santa Rosa Yes Pioneer 
Broward Yes Linebarger Holmes Yes Pioneer-Credit Recovery, Inc Sarasota Yes Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP
Broward Yes Penn Credit Indian River Yes Linebarger Sarasota Yes Penn Credit Corporation
Calhoun Yes Marianna Credit Bureau Indian River Yes Penn Seminole No NONE
Charlotte Yes Pioneer Credit Recovery Indian River Yes SC Services St. Johns Yes Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson LLP
Citrus Yes Linebarger Jackson Yes Marianna Credit Bureau St. Lucie Yes Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP Attorneys at Law
Citrus Yes MSB (Gila Corp) Jefferson Yes Penn Credit St. Lucie Yes Penn Credit Corporation
Clay Yes Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP Lafayette Yes Pioneer-Credit Recovery, Inc. Sumter No NONE
Clay Yes Pioneer-Credit Recovery, Inc Lake Yes Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP Suwannee Yes Pioneer Credit Recovery
Collier Yes Linebarger Coggan Blair & Sampson, LLP Lee Yes Linebarger, Goggan, Blair & Sampson, LLP TAYLOR Yes Pioneer Credit Recovery
Collier Yes Penn Credit Corportation Leon Yes Linebarger Volusia Yes Linebarger Goggin Blair & Sampson, LLP
Columbia Yes Pioneer Credit Recovery Leon Yes Penn Credit Volusia Yes MSB Government Services
DADE Yes ALLIANCE ONE RECEIVABLES MANAGEMENT, INC. LEVY YES PIONEER-CREDIT RECOVERY, INC Wakulla Yes PENN CREDIT
DADE Yes DUNCAN SOLUTIONS (LES) Liberty Yes Pioneer Wakulla Yes Pioneer-Credit Recovery, Inc
DADE Yes LINEBARGER GOGGAN BLAIR & SAMPSON, LLP Madison Yes Pioneer-Credit Recovery, Inc. Walton Yes Pioneer Credit Recovery
DADE Yes PENN CREDIT CORPORATION Manatee Yes Penn Credit Washington Yes Marianna Credit Bureau
Desoto Yes Pioneer Credit Recovery Manatee Yes Pioneer Credit Recovery
Dixie Yes Pioneer Marion Yes Gila LLC d/b/a Municipal Services Bureau (MSB)
Duval Yes Linebarger Martin Yes Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson
Duval Yes Penn Credtit Corporation Monroe Yes Linebarger Goggan Blair and Sampson, LLP
Duval Yes Pioneer Credit Recovery Nassau Yes Pioneer-Credit Recovery, Inc
Escambia yes Collections Services, Inc. Okaloosa Yes Penn Credit Corporation
Flagler Yes Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP Okaloosa Yes Pioneer-Credit Recovery, Inc
Flagler Yes Pioneer Credit Recovery Inc Okeechobee Yes Pioneer-Credit Recovery, Inc
Franklin Yes Pioneer Credit Recovery Orange Yes Alliance One
Gadsden Yes Pioneer Credit Recovery Orange Yes Linebarger
Gilchrist Yes PIONEER CREDIT RECOVERY Orange Yes Penn Credit
Glades Yes Penn Credit Osceola Yes Linebarger
Glades Yes Pioneer-Credit Recovery, Inc Osceola Yes PENN CREDIT
Gulf Yes Pioneer-Credit Recovery, Inc. Palm Beach yes Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP
Hamilton Yes Pioneer-Credit Recovery, Inc Palm Beach yes Penn Credit Corporation
Hardee Yes Pioneer Credit Recovery Pasco Yes Linebarger, Goggin, Blair, & Sampson, LLP

COLLECTION AGENTS UNDER CONTRACT BY COUNTY

R:\!CFY1516\Collection Agents Analysis\Collection Agents Analysis CFY2015-16 macro.xlsm

150 of 179



SECTION  TWO
STATE-WIDE DATA: Summary and Analysis

Criminal Circuit Criminal County Delinquency Criminal Traffic
Unallocated Lump 

Sum Criminal TOTAL CRIMINAL Civil Circuit Civil County Probate
Juvenile 

Dependency Family Civil Traffic
Unallocated Lump 

Sum Civil TOTAL CIVIL

TOTAL OF 
ACCOUNTS SENT 

TO AGENTS
$114,511,179.96 $44,994,105.45 $199,754.09 $42,727,590.85 $4,821,160.08 $207,253,790.43 $399,657.26 $2,188,255.89 $33,499.75 $66,345.00 $554,624.14 $97,838,270.22 $613,473.00 $101,694,125.26 $308,947,915.69

Criminal Circuit Criminal County Delinquency Criminal Traffic
Unallocated Lump 

Sum Criminal TOTAL CRIMINAL Civil Circuit Civil County Probate
Juvenile 

Dependency Family Civil Traffic
Unallocated Lump 

Sum Civil TOTAL CIVIL

TOTAL OF 
ACCOUNTS REC'V 

FROM AGENTS
$7,439,948.33 $6,239,806.81 $19,259.07 $12,121,667.55 $1,122,799.93 $26,943,481.69 $11,369.03 $58,119.82 $2,938.99 $9,264.96 $37,307.53 $46,314,725.03 $299,465.14 $46,733,190.50 $73,676,672.19

Number of 
Counties 
Reporting

Number of 
Reports Received 

from the 
Reporting 
Counties

Number of 
Reporting 

Counties NOT 
Contracting With 
OR Using Agents

(See Note)

Counties with 
One Collections 
Agent Contract

Counties with 
Two Collections 
Agent Contracts

Counties with 
Three Collections 
Agent Contracts

Counties with 
Four Collections 
Agent Contracts

66 101 4 39 21 4 2
NOTE: Two counties, Brevard and Hernando, have multiple contracts in force with different collection agents and one expired contract. Actual "Number of Reporting Counties NOT Contracting With OR Using Agents" at all is only two.

Distribution of Contracts Among Collection Agents

Aspen 

Alliance One 
Receivables 

Management
Credit Bureau of 

Marianna Duncan Solutions

Linebarger, 
Goggan, Blair & 
Sampson, LLP Navient

Municipal 
Services Bureau

Penn Credit 
Corporation

Pioneer Credit 
Recovery

TOTAL NUMBER 
OF CONTRACTS

1 2 3 1 26 1 7 23 35 99

Reporting Data Multiple-Contract Density

ACCOUNTS  SENT FOR COLLECTION ACTION

 COLLECTIONS  RECEIVED

R:\!CFY1516\Collection Agents Analysis\Collection Agents Analysis CFY2015-16 macro.xlsm

151 of 179



SECTION  THREE
STATE-WIDE DATA: Summary and Analysis

County Criminal Circuit Criminal County Delinquency Criminal Traffic
Unallocated Lump 

Sum Criminal TOTAL CRIMINAL Civil Circuit Civil County Probate
Juvenile 

Dependency Family Civil Traffic
Unallocated Lump 

Sum Civil TOTAL CIVIL

TOTAL OF 
ACCOUNTS SENT 

TO AGENTS
Alachua $1,610,502.79 $565,482.79 $0.00 $400,797.54 $0.00 $2,576,783.12 $78,901.47 $175,689.35 $4,666.00 $0.00 $175,771.89 $554,311.50 $0.00 $989,340.21 $3,566,123.33
Baker $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $120,831.00 $0.00 $120,831.00 $120,831.00
Bay $0.00 $18,524.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,524.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $764,575.60 $0.00 $764,575.60 $783,099.60
Bradford $900.39 $174.25 $0.00 $273.00 $0.00 $1,347.64 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200,290.00 $0.00 $200,290.00 $201,637.64
Brevard $2,079,626.32 $1,014,941.40 $0.00 $779,157.67 $0.00 $3,873,725.39 $67,355.64 $3,610.16 $1,227.00 $0.00 $52,906.04 $327,059.34 $0.00 $452,158.18 $4,325,883.57
Brevard $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Brevard $14,117,224.04 $9,562,561.66 $0.00 $8,190,870.79 $0.00 $31,870,656.49 $168,832.57 $6,936.84 $1,938.00 $0.00 $69,908.90 $3,522,614.42 $0.00 $3,770,230.73 $35,640,887.22
Brevard $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Broward $3,118,052.30 $180,268.50 $0.00 $1,184,265.02 $0.00 $4,482,585.82 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,012,726.30 $0.00 $2,012,726.30 $6,495,312.12
Broward $2,755,826.55 $176,072.35 $0.00 $1,156,280.66 $0.00 $4,088,179.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,018,839.00 $0.00 $2,018,839.00 $6,107,018.56
Calhoun $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $29,184.75 $0.00 $29,184.75 $29,184.75
Charlotte $554,054.40 $475,980.16 $0.00 $429,916.71 $0.00 $1,459,951.27 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $228,835.25 $0.00 $228,835.25 $1,688,786.52
Citrus $787,025.04 $216,064.11 $0.00 $134,901.15 $0.00 $1,137,990.30 $200.00 $385.00 $659.68 $0.00 $8,115.18 $60,064.50 $0.00 $69,424.36 $1,207,414.66
Citrus $910,737.26 $199,365.33 $0.00 $144,444.58 $0.00 $1,254,547.17 $0.00 $0.00 $745.00 $0.00 $6,970.00 $55,469.50 $0.00 $63,184.50 $1,317,731.67
Clay $336,488.00 $467,816.00 $0.00 $361,956.00 $0.00 $1,166,260.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $922,545.00 $0.00 $922,545.00 $2,088,805.00
Clay $282,780.48 $104,061.81 $0.00 $57,215.47 $0.00 $444,057.76 $0.00 $2,163.00 $0.00 $400.00 $0.00 $124,695.25 $0.00 $127,258.25 $571,316.01
Collier $1,888,841.86 $318,885.40 $0.00 $325,274.62 $0.00 $2,533,001.88 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $405,303.38 $0.00 $405,303.38 $2,938,305.26
Collier $730,051.51 $277,819.70 $0.00 $298,144.19 $0.00 $1,306,015.40 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $389,552.59 $0.00 $389,552.59 $1,695,567.99
Columbia $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,056.60 $0.00 $11,056.60 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $205,157.78 $0.00 $205,157.78 $216,214.38
DADE $3,669,045.12 $1,884,897.12 $0.00 $818,561.53 $0.00 $6,372,503.77 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,276,566.59 $0.00 $8,276,566.59 $14,649,070.36
DADE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,629,546.80 $0.00 $1,629,546.80 $1,629,546.80
DADE $3,748,543.97 $1,925,738.03 $0.00 $818,555.69 $0.00 $6,492,837.69 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,911,249.31 $0.00 $9,911,249.31 $16,404,087.00
DADE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $818,556.58 $0.00 $818,556.58 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,954,592.55 $0.00 $9,954,592.55 $10,773,149.13
Desoto $4,571.64 $2,025.00 $0.00 $1,146.00 $0.00 $7,742.64 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,609.00 $0.00 $30,609.00 $38,351.64
Dixie $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $56,167.00 $56,167.00 $56,167.00
Duval $756.00 $1,624,735.87 $0.00 $2,546,918.77 $0.00 $4,172,410.64 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,474,791.20 $0.00 $2,474,791.20 $6,647,201.84
Duval  $1,574,512.27 $0.00 $2,587,933.33 $0.00 $4,162,445.60 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,479,206.24 $0.00 $2,479,206.24 $6,641,651.84
Duval $7,033,005.46 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,033,005.46 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,033,005.46
Escambia $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Flagler $0.00 $40,950.46 $0.00 $39,985.23 $0.00 $80,935.69 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40,055.75 $0.00 $40,055.75 $120,991.44
Flagler $0.00 $112,060.84 $0.00 $73,028.72 $0.00 $185,089.56 $0.00 $220.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $83,200.00 $0.00 $83,420.50 $268,510.06
Franklin $77,744.22 $6,910.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $84,654.22 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,928.00 $0.00 $19,928.00 $104,582.22
Gadsden $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $238,380.00 $0.00 $238,380.00 $238,380.00
Gilchrist $0.00 $90.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $90.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,978.00 $0.00 $6,978.00 $7,068.00
Glades $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $51,874.20 $0.00 $51,874.20 $51,874.20
Glades $0.00 $23,526.67 $0.00 $42,983.38 $0.00 $66,510.05 $0.00 $1,668.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,605.50 $0.00 $17,273.50 $83,783.55
Gulf $154,136.78 $21,354.37 $0.00 $21,972.13 $0.00 $197,463.28 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $550.00 $0.00 $10,696.00 $0.00 $11,246.00 $208,709.28
Hamilton $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $207,767.70 $0.00 $207,767.70 $207,767.70
Hardee $295,423.28 $54,962.00 $0.00 $46,223.37 $0.00 $396,608.65 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $76,024.00 $0.00 $76,024.00 $472,632.65
Hendry $618,923.11 $64,198.55 $0.00 $98,847.35 $0.00 $781,969.01 $0.00 $10,645.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $136,721.72 $0.00 $147,367.22 $929,336.23
Hernando $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $310,898.14 $0.00 $310,898.14 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $310,898.14
Hernando $2,080,157.26 $24,559.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,104,716.82 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $486,112.39 $0.00 $486,112.39 $2,590,829.21
Hernando $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Highlands $2,048,646.46 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,048,646.46 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,048,646.46
Highlands $0.00 $0.00 $96,708.91 $0.00 $0.00 $96,708.91 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,240.00 $0.00 $150,249.50 $0.00 $162,489.50 $259,198.41

ACCOUNTS  SENT FOR COLLECTION ACTION

R:\!CFY1516\Collection Agents Analysis\Collection Agents Analysis CFY2015-16 macro.xlsm

152 of 179



SECTION  THREE
STATE-WIDE DATA: Summary and Analysis

County Criminal Circuit Criminal County Delinquency Criminal Traffic
Unallocated Lump 

Sum Criminal TOTAL CRIMINAL Civil Circuit Civil County Probate
Juvenile 

Dependency Family Civil Traffic
Unallocated Lump 

Sum Civil TOTAL CIVIL

TOTAL OF 
ACCOUNTS SENT 

TO AGENTS

ACCOUNTS  SENT FOR COLLECTION ACTION

Hillsborough $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $875,361.56 $0.00 $875,361.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,223,136.00 $0.00 $1,223,136.00 $2,098,497.56
Hillsborough $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $230,191.33 $0.00 $230,191.33 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $363,510.80 $0.00 $363,510.80 $593,702.13
Holmes $38,938.12 $47,413.55 $0.00 $57,827.25 $0.00 $144,178.92 $739.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $57,827.25 $0.00 $58,566.25 $202,745.17
Indian River $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $415,784.00 $415,784.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $415,784.00
Indian River $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $387,267.00 $387,267.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $387,267.00
Indian River $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Jackson $227,462.00 $33,687.95 $0.00 $33,687.95 $0.00 $294,837.90 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $294,837.90
Jefferson $85,490.60 $18,704.24 $3,335.74 $22,860.74 $0.00 $130,391.32 $14,642.58 $15,323.72 $7,858.07 $0.00 $43,927.75 $91,442.96 $0.00 $173,195.08 $303,586.40
Lafayette $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,672.00 $0.00 $5,672.00 $5,672.00
Lake $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Lee $3,058,733.00 $1,691,696.00 $104,415.00 $1,182,104.00 $0.00 $6,036,948.00 $43,244.00 $8,136.00 $13,567.00 $25,650.00 $46,899.00 $4,042,006.00 $0.00 $4,179,502.00 $10,216,450.00
Leon $1,514,890.04 $487,589.20 $0.00 $365,482.23 $0.00 $2,367,961.47 $7,726.50 $2,419.00 $1,120.00 $0.00 $16,429.50 $503,846.00 $0.00 $531,541.00 $2,899,502.47
Leon $1,468,331.59 $452,866.80 $0.00 $295,998.65 $0.00 $2,217,197.04 $6,837.00 $3,374.00 $979.00 $0.00 $13,719.00 $451,428.00 $0.00 $476,337.00 $2,693,534.04
LEVY $14,780.53 $45,210.06 $2,401.44 $20,834.88 $0.00 $83,226.91 $449.50 $4,169.50 $740.00 $0.00 $11,388.94 $49,918.00 $0.00 $66,665.94 $149,892.85
Liberty $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,109.00 $0.00 $10,109.00 $10,109.00
Madison $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,923.90 $0.00 $1,923.90 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $211,162.09 $0.00 $211,162.09 $213,085.99
Manatee $742,567.00 $366,283.00 $0.00 $295,704.00 $0.00 $1,404,554.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $224,513.00 $0.00 $224,513.00 $1,629,067.00
Manatee $2,065,661.00 $1,603,562.00 $0.00 $1,012,799.00 $0.00 $4,682,022.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $681,480.00 $0.00 $681,480.00 $5,363,502.00
Marion $856,029.96 $853,692.91 $0.00 $674,202.82 $0.00 $2,383,925.69 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $966,033.78 $0.00 $966,033.78 $3,349,959.47
Martin $5,715,551.00 $293,450.00 $0.00 $379,157.00 $0.00 $6,388,158.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $874,452.00 $0.00 $874,452.00 $7,262,610.00
Monroe $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $213,204.11 $0.00 $213,204.11 $213,204.11
Nassau $478,715.32 $104,333.65 $0.00 $203,961.86 $0.00 $787,010.83 $50.00 $2,142.25 $0.00 $0.00 $1,831.00 $189,901.00 $0.00 $193,924.25 $980,935.08
Okaloosa $2,890,005.75 $446,612.38 $0.00 $425,822.53 $0.00 $3,762,440.66 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $534,258.17 $0.00 $534,258.17 $4,296,698.83
Okaloosa $0.00 $2,073.00 $0.00 $2,550.00 $0.00 $4,623.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $768.50 $0.00 $768.50 $5,391.50
Okeechobee $704,506.54 $97,487.42 $0.00 $93,660.75 $0.00 $895,654.71 $9,040.50 $840.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50.00 $87,130.15 $0.00 $97,060.65 $992,715.36
Orange $10,791,528.00 $554,979.00 -$13,735.00 -$129,285.00 $0.00 $11,203,487.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,649,829.00 $0.00 $8,649,829.00 $19,853,316.00
Orange $3,062,555.95 $420,292.31 $0.00 $555,020.26 $0.00 $4,037,868.52 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,825,159.77 $0.00 $1,825,159.77 $5,863,028.29
Orange $7,843,747.00 $3,029,526.00 $6,628.00 $3,526,053.00 $0.00 $14,405,954.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,055,042.00 $0.00 $5,055,042.00 $19,460,996.00
Osceola $628,117.11 $4,436.95 $0.00 $240,236.42 $0.00 $872,790.48 $0.00 $272,529.11 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $678,080.01 $0.00 $950,609.12 $1,823,399.60
Osceola $2,165,937.80 $1,949.70 $0.00 $239,663.13 $0.00 $2,407,550.63 $0.00 $212,967.09 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $700,416.55 $0.00 $913,383.64 $3,320,934.27
Palm Beach $2,940,379.50 $1,530,579.90 $0.00 $1,393,035.41 $0.00 $5,863,994.81 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,827,124.11 $0.00 $1,827,124.11 $7,691,118.92
Palm Beach $3,935,376.12 $1,693,729.69 $0.00 $1,649,835.63 $0.00 $7,278,941.44 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,184,816.40 $0.00 $2,184,816.40 $9,463,757.84
Pasco $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,372,453.14 $0.00 $1,372,453.14 $1,372,453.14
Pasco $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,660,036.55 $0.00 $1,660,036.55 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,660,036.55
Pinellas $4,075,913.36 $1,762,467.48 $0.00 $1,154,087.17 $0.00 $6,992,468.01 $0.00 $532,060.40 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $916,775.57 $0.00 $1,448,835.97 $8,441,303.98
Pinellas $4,106,965.21 $1,811,319.89 $0.00 $1,195,012.18 $0.00 $7,113,297.28 $0.00 $512,336.68 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $951,363.91 $0.00 $1,463,700.59 $8,576,997.87
Polk $0.00 $3,177,189.47 $0.00 $1,438,548.94 $0.00 $4,615,738.41 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,175,229.88 $0.00 $2,175,229.88 $6,790,968.29
Polk $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,496,519.53 $0.00 $4,496,519.53 $4,496,519.53
Putnam $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,609.69 $101,972.04 $0.00 $119,581.73 $119,581.73
Santa Rosa $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $884,516.00 $884,516.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $246,511.00 $246,511.00 $1,131,027.00
Santa Rosa $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,161,241.00 $1,161,241.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $237,385.00 $237,385.00 $1,398,626.00
Sarasota $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,153,206.00 $1,153,206.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,104,065.00 $0.00 $1,104,065.00 $2,257,271.00
Sarasota $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $739,579.00 $739,579.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $726,125.00 $0.00 $726,125.00 $1,465,704.00
Seminole $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
St. Johns $685,100.34 $474,801.11 $0.00 $292,317.60 $0.00 $1,452,219.05 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $271,858.33 $0.00 $271,858.33 $1,724,077.38

R:\!CFY1516\Collection Agents Analysis\Collection Agents Analysis CFY2015-16 macro.xlsm

153 of 179



SECTION  THREE
STATE-WIDE DATA: Summary and Analysis

County Criminal Circuit Criminal County Delinquency Criminal Traffic
Unallocated Lump 

Sum Criminal TOTAL CRIMINAL Civil Circuit Civil County Probate
Juvenile 

Dependency Family Civil Traffic
Unallocated Lump 

Sum Civil TOTAL CIVIL

TOTAL OF 
ACCOUNTS SENT 

TO AGENTS

ACCOUNTS  SENT FOR COLLECTION ACTION

St. Lucie $2,039,006.00 $60,340.06 $0.00 $316,382.00 $0.00 $2,415,728.06 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $239,370.00 $0.00 $239,370.00 $2,655,098.06
St. Lucie $3,104,014.86 $768,694.02 $0.00 $669,935.79 $0.00 $4,542,644.67 $915.00 $1,817.29 $0.00 $0.00 $84,798.80 $502,467.62 $0.00 $589,998.71 $5,132,643.38
Sumter $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Suwannee $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $98,569.00 $0.00 $98,569.00 $98,569.00
TAYLOR $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $28,421.50 $0.00 $28,421.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,477.00 $0.00 $30,477.00 $58,898.50
Volusia $5,878.64 $715,719.51 $0.00 $623,995.60 $0.00 $1,345,593.75 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,790,958.44 $0.00 $4,790,958.44 $6,136,552.19
Volusia $6,359.54 $1,351,697.65 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,358,057.19 $723.50 $417,042.50 $0.00 $27,505.00 $4,298.45 $0.00 $0.00 $449,569.45 $1,807,626.64
Wakulla $355,573.84 $153,182.35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $508,756.19 NA NA NA NA NA NA $0.00 $0.00 $508,756.19
Wakulla $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,780.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,522.50 $0.00 $37,302.50 $37,302.50
Walton $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $79,567.08 $79,567.08 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $73,410.00 $73,410.00 $152,977.08
Washington $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100,067.00 $0.00 $100,067.00 $100,067.00
Total $114,511,179.96 $44,994,105.45 $199,754.09 $42,727,590.85 $4,821,160.08 $207,253,790.43 $399,657.26 $2,188,255.89 $33,499.75 $66,345.00 $554,624.14 $97,838,270.22 $613,473.00 $101,694,125.26 $308,947,915.69

R:\!CFY1516\Collection Agents Analysis\Collection Agents Analysis CFY2015-16 macro.xlsm

154 of 179



SECTION  THREE
STATE-WIDE DATA: Summary and Analysis

County Criminal Circuit Criminal County Delinquency Criminal Traffic
Unallocated Lump 

Sum Criminal TOTAL CRIMINAL Civil Circuit Civil County Probate
Juvenile 

Dependency Family Civil Traffic
Unallocated Lump 

Sum Civil TOTAL CIVIL

TOTAL OF 
ACCOUNTS REC'V 

FROM AGENTS
Alachua $96,786.78 $62,552.18 $0.00 $117,598.78 $0.00 $276,937.74 $0.00 $12,736.20 $0.00 $2.50 $60.00 $557,900.26 $0.00 $570,698.96 $847,636.70
Baker $0.00 $333.51 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $333.51 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $79,119.93 $0.00 $79,119.93 $79,453.44
Bay $5,893.91 $8,626.44 $0.00 $10,549.15 $225,141.57 $250,211.07 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $315,211.56 $0.00 $315,211.56 $565,422.63
Bradford $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,495.00 $0.00 $6,495.00 $6,495.00
Brevard $278,062.74 $277,953.74 $0.00 $363,837.84 $0.00 $919,854.32 $3,521.33 $440.00 $400.00 $0.00 $4,726.60 $278,066.89 $0.00 $287,154.82 $1,207,009.14
Brevard $3,724.49 $2,384.90 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,109.39 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,109.39
Brevard $176,653.63 $154,000.34 $0.00 $203,999.60 $0.00 $534,653.57 $1,025.00 $0.00 $400.00 $0.00 $5,529.36 $152,675.69 $0.00 $159,630.05 $694,283.62
Brevard $113,622.32 $116,404.27 $0.00 $161,934.35 $0.00 $391,960.94 $268.00 $642.00 $110.00 $0.00 $3,464.09 $148,589.57 $0.00 $153,073.66 $545,034.60
Broward $345,963.66 $150,147.33 $0.00 $1,058,373.93 $0.00 $1,554,484.92 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,854,160.00 $0.00 $1,854,160.00 $3,408,644.92
Broward $162,048.15 $94,425.17 $0.00 $953,975.31 $0.00 $1,210,448.63 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,800,828.61 $0.00 $1,800,828.61 $3,011,277.24
Calhoun $0.00 $630.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $630.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $21,231.00 $0.00 $21,231.00 $21,861.00
Charlotte $12,983.33 $29,475.25 $0.00 $22,955.60 $0.00 $65,414.18 $1,055.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $41,424.26 $0.00 $42,479.26 $107,893.44
Citrus $129,487.11 $63,977.84 $0.00 $58,508.61 $0.00 $251,973.56 $229.50 $60.00 $0.00 $0.00 $893.00 $37,837.81 $0.00 $39,020.31 $290,993.87
Citrus $118,385.78 $58,828.41 $0.00 $43,455.37 $0.00 $220,669.56 $100.00 $0.00 $345.00 $0.00 $1,849.00 $36,547.24 $0.00 $38,841.24 $259,510.80
Clay $56,208.00 $49,337.00 $0.00 $44,484.00 $0.00 $150,029.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $275,178.00 $0.00 $275,178.00 $425,207.00
Clay $32,544.55 $21,402.53 $0.00 $31,940.64 $0.00 $85,887.72 $0.00 $651.00 $0.00 $88.00 $263.30 $49,860.64 $0.00 $50,862.94 $136,750.66
Collier $66,186.27 $42,803.77 $0.00 $138,168.93 $0.00 $247,158.97 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $278,351.90 $0.00 $278,351.90 $525,510.87
Collier $33,408.29 $23,448.24 $0.00 $111,331.71 $0.00 $168,188.24 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $248,220.21 $0.00 $248,220.21 $416,408.45
Columbia $0.00 $105.18 $0.00 $2,028.00 $0.00 $2,133.18 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $161,327.68 $0.00 $161,327.68 $163,460.86
DADE $473,865.14 $263,777.46 $0.00 $328,359.28 $0.00 $1,066,001.88 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,320,077.16 $0.00 $3,320,077.16 $4,386,079.04
DADE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,117,391.35 $0.00 $1,117,391.35 $1,117,391.35
DADE $571,788.72 $273,405.89 $0.00 $334,867.89 $0.00 $1,180,062.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,515,740.02 $0.00 $4,515,740.02 $5,695,802.52
DADE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $325,219.29 $0.00 $325,219.29 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,388,175.10 $0.00 $4,388,175.10 $4,713,394.39
Desoto $64,532.25 $12,110.86 $0.00 $15,997.14 $0.00 $92,640.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $261.00 $37,550.43 $0.00 $37,811.43 $130,451.68
Dixie $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,281.00 $15,281.00 $15,281.00
Duval $27,244.50 $97,824.11 $0.00 $726,966.00 $0.00 $852,034.61 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,938,022.69 $0.00 $1,938,022.69 $2,790,057.30
Duval $1,659.50 $90,106.75 $0.00 $388,922.75 $0.00 $480,689.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,370,297.10 $0.00 $1,370,297.10 $1,850,986.10
Duval $151,487.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $151,487.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $151,487.50
Escambia $692.51 $6,050.91 $0.00 $2,732.10 $0.00 $9,475.52 $0.00 $0.00 $235.00 $0.00 $0.00 $70.50 $0.00 $305.50 $9,781.02
Flagler $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $108.00 $0.00 $108.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,788.00 $0.00 $5,788.00 $5,896.00
Flagler $0.00 $13,681.27 $0.00 $23,450.10 $0.00 $37,131.37 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $69,907.03 $0.00 $69,907.03 $107,038.40
Franklin $7,087.59 $152.48 $0.00 $281.25 $0.00 $7,521.32 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,422.41 $0.00 $13,422.41 $20,943.73
Gadsden $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $171,580.64 $171,580.64 $171,580.64
Gilchrist $0.00 $162.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $162.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,311.50 $0.00 $5,311.50 $5,473.50
Glades $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,605.50 $0.00 $19,605.50 $19,605.50
Glades $0.00 $8,095.58 $0.00 $22,758.21 $0.00 $30,853.79 $0.00 $766.05 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,865.47 $0.00 $21,631.52 $52,485.31
Gulf $6,206.64 $1,853.01 $0.00 $1,961.25 $0.00 $10,020.90 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $408.00 $2,621.55 $0.00 $3,029.55 $13,050.45
Hamilton $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,489.90 $0.00 $33,489.90 $33,489.90
Hardee $11,441.53 $13,686.82 $0.00 $20,866.71 $0.00 $45,995.06 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $59,893.52 $0.00 $59,893.52 $105,888.58
Hendry $4,661.37 $64,198.55 $0.00 $18,419.59 $0.00 $87,279.51 $0.00 $3,952.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $82,248.22 $0.00 $86,200.22 $173,479.73
Hernando $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $310,898.14 $0.00 $310,898.14 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $310,898.14
Hernando $49,791.92 $645,027.27 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $694,819.19 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $119,199.03 $0.00 $119,199.03 $814,018.22
Hernando $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,010.79 $10,010.79 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,010.79
Highlands $25,949.81 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,949.81 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,949.81
Highlands $0.00 $0.00 $2,615.13 $0.00 $0.00 $2,615.13 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $98,741.64 $0.00 $98,741.64 $101,356.77

 COLLECTIONS  RECEIVED

R:\!CFY1516\Collection Agents Analysis\Collection Agents Analysis CFY2015-16 macro.xlsm

155 of 179



SECTION  THREE
STATE-WIDE DATA: Summary and Analysis

County Criminal Circuit Criminal County Delinquency Criminal Traffic
Unallocated Lump 

Sum Criminal TOTAL CRIMINAL Civil Circuit Civil County Probate
Juvenile 

Dependency Family Civil Traffic
Unallocated Lump 

Sum Civil TOTAL CIVIL

TOTAL OF 
ACCOUNTS REC'V 

FROM AGENTS

 COLLECTIONS  RECEIVED

Hillsborough $46,344.12 $89,982.98 $0.00 $721,550.61 $0.00 $857,877.71 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $518,559.78 $0.00 $518,559.78 $1,376,437.49
Hillsborough $3,410.26 $5,959.00 $0.00 $489,797.37 $0.00 $499,166.63 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $324,052.50 $0.00 $324,052.50 $823,219.13
Holmes $2,635.00 $2,387.40 $0.00 $413.00 $0.00 $5,435.40 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $22,683.50 $0.00 $22,683.50 $28,118.90
Indian River $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $170,522.21 $170,522.21 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $170,522.21
Indian River $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $141,417.37 $141,417.37 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $141,417.37
Indian River $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $119,119.45 $119,119.45 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $119,119.45
Jackson $0.00 $1,105.50 $0.00 $138,203.50 $0.00 $139,309.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $139,309.00
Jefferson $4,702.00 $1,028.70 $0.00 $1,257.30 $0.00 $6,988.00 $2,415.75 $843.00 $432.00 $0.00 $805.25 $22,884.00 $0.00 $27,380.00 $34,368.00
Lafayette $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,547.00 $0.00 $4,547.00 $4,547.00
Lake $384,438.81 $186,594.04 $0.00 $250,562.99 $0.00 $821,595.84 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $395,623.23 $0.00 $395,623.23 $1,217,219.07
Lee $27,403.00 $42,108.00 $7,681.00 $46,997.00 $0.00 $124,189.00 $25.00 $0.00 $473.00 $1,817.00 $0.00 $246,880.00 $0.00 $249,195.00 $373,384.00
Leon $161,342.36 $105,353.11 $0.00 $162,666.81 $0.00 $429,362.28 $1,729.62 $560.71 $465.29 $0.00 $770.50 $534,825.00 $0.00 $538,351.12 $967,713.40
Leon $83,530.34 $46,990.98 $0.00 $54,257.66 $0.00 $184,778.98 $685.31 $1,481.43 $0.00 $0.00 $1,631.00 $224,312.00 $0.00 $228,109.74 $412,888.72
LEVY $11,378.33 $5,369.94 $756.96 $19,411.50 $0.00 $36,916.73 $0.00 $639.88 $78.70 $0.00 $2,217.87 $48,543.75 $0.00 $51,480.20 $88,396.93
Liberty $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,600.00 $0.00 $9,600.00 $9,600.00
Madison $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,029.81 $0.00 $1,029.81 $0.00 $116.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $142,882.91 $0.00 $142,998.91 $144,028.72
Manatee $182,589.47 $50,983.64 $0.00 $90,507.13 $0.00 $324,080.24 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $433,102.97 $0.00 $433,102.97 $757,183.21
Manatee $18,711.65 $6,806.60 $0.00 $21,193.87 $0.00 $46,712.12 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $166,262.27 $0.00 $166,262.27 $212,974.39
Marion $355,709.16 $153,559.27 $0.00 $141,182.56 $0.00 $650,450.99 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $114.32 $286,007.87 $0.00 $286,122.19 $936,573.18
Martin $127,965.00 $84,295.00 $0.00 $60,965.00 $0.00 $273,225.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $373,825.00 $0.00 $373,825.00 $647,050.00
Monroe $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $170,396.19 $0.00 $170,396.19 $170,396.19
Nassau $16,794.80 $30,939.66 $0.00 $54,508.86 $0.00 $102,243.32 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,831.00 $107,005.30 $0.00 $108,836.30 $211,079.62
Okaloosa $8,375.50 $21,247.28 $0.00 $24,291.25 $0.00 $53,914.03 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $98,569.21 $0.00 $98,569.21 $152,483.24
Okaloosa $7,892.57 $38,650.81 $0.00 $38,119.50 $0.00 $84,662.88 $0.00 $890.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $52,151.08 $0.00 $53,041.58 $137,704.46
Okeechobee $15,848.00 $6,796.04 $0.00 $5,438.15 $0.00 $28,082.19 $158.65 $0.00 $0.00 $688.40 $0.00 $18,199.68 $0.00 $19,046.73 $47,128.92
Orange $978,073.00 $486,000.00 $7,909.00 $53,350.00 $0.00 $1,525,332.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,990,129.00 $0.00 $4,990,129.00 $6,515,461.00
Orange $10,615.03 $8,170.74 $0.00 $4,906.42 $0.00 $23,692.19 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $154,379.31 $0.00 $154,379.31 $178,071.50
Orange $240,208.00 $115,717.00 $143.00 $502,613.00 $0.00 $858,681.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,902,396.00 $0.00 $2,902,396.00 $3,761,077.00
Osceola $8,045.64 $0.00 $0.00 $44,904.13 $0.00 $52,949.77 $0.00 $9,909.21 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $486,138.48 $0.00 $496,047.69 $548,997.46
Osceola $16,080.75 $0.00 $0.00 $34,971.19 $0.00 $51,051.94 $0.00 $19,810.44 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $580,513.52 $0.00 $600,323.96 $651,375.90
Palm Beach $556,562.49 $367,438.93 $0.00 $565,973.79 $0.00 $1,489,975.21 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,526,132.48 $0.00 $1,526,132.48 $3,016,107.69
Palm Beach $461,753.38 $347,419.14 $0.00 $523,521.10 $0.00 $1,332,693.62 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,386,713.67 $0.00 $1,386,713.67 $2,719,407.29
Pasco $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $841,420.87 $0.00 $841,420.87 $841,420.87
Pasco $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $186,246.41 $0.00 $186,246.41 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $186,246.41
Pinellas $109,697.33 $230,691.01 $0.00 $383,012.54 $0.00 $723,400.88 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $283.03 $810,795.27 $0.00 $811,078.30 $1,534,479.18
Pinellas $34,861.90 $135,610.53 $0.00 $278,850.13 $0.00 $449,322.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $749,075.66 $0.00 $749,075.66 $1,198,398.22
Polk $0.00 $442,425.81 $0.00 $582,540.98 $0.00 $1,024,966.79 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $750.41 $0.00 $1,165,940.47 $0.00 $1,166,690.88 $2,191,657.67
Polk $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $197,494.11 $0.00 $197,494.11 $197,494.11
Putnam $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,227.93 $179,275.25 $0.00 $182,503.18 $182,503.18
Santa Rosa $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,041.00 $1,041.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,881.00 $10,881.00 $11,922.00
Santa Rosa $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $63,030.00 $63,030.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $37,969.00 $37,969.00 $100,999.00
Sarasota $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $345,642.00 $345,642.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $758,532.00 $0.00 $758,532.00 $1,104,174.00
Sarasota $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $21,259.00 $21,259.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $239,536.00 $0.00 $239,536.00 $260,795.00
Seminole $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
St. Johns $132,350.58 $105,033.97 $0.00 $94,242.13 $0.00 $331,626.68 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $240,670.23 $0.00 $240,670.23 $572,296.91

R:\!CFY1516\Collection Agents Analysis\Collection Agents Analysis CFY2015-16 macro.xlsm

156 of 179



SECTION  THREE
STATE-WIDE DATA: Summary and Analysis

County Criminal Circuit Criminal County Delinquency Criminal Traffic
Unallocated Lump 

Sum Criminal TOTAL CRIMINAL Civil Circuit Civil County Probate
Juvenile 

Dependency Family Civil Traffic
Unallocated Lump 

Sum Civil TOTAL CIVIL

TOTAL OF 
ACCOUNTS REC'V 

FROM AGENTS

 COLLECTIONS  RECEIVED

St. Lucie $94,740.00 $76,108.00 $0.00 $93,449.00 $0.00 $264,297.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $153,567.00 $0.00 $153,567.00 $417,864.00
St. Lucie $251,410.70 $164,668.26 $0.00 $162,007.41 $0.00 $578,086.37 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $603.72 $362,704.18 $0.00 $363,307.90 $941,394.27
Sumter $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Suwannee $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $85,246.42 $0.00 $85,246.42 $85,246.42
TAYLOR $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,146.20 $0.00 $5,146.20 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,769.08 $0.00 $18,769.08 $23,915.28
Volusia $598.00 $48,741.63 $0.00 $140,508.11 $0.00 $189,847.74 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $266,162.83 $0.00 $266,162.83 $456,010.57
Volusia $23,956.63 $161,293.00 $153.98 $291,703.62 $0.00 $477,107.23 $155.87 $3,638.40 $0.00 $5,918.65 $8,368.56 $400,260.29 $0.00 $418,341.77 $895,449.00
Wakulla $33,556.54 $20,553.44 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $54,109.98 NA NA NA NA NA NA $0.00 $0.00 $54,109.98
Wakulla $0.00 $2,808.34 $0.00 $6,418.00 $0.00 $9,226.34 $0.00 $983.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $22,911.80 $0.00 $23,894.80 $33,121.14
Walton $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,616.54 $25,616.54 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $63,753.50 $63,753.50 $89,370.04
Washington $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,603.50 $0.00 $33,603.50 $33,603.50
Total $7,439,948.33 $6,239,806.81 $19,259.07 $12,121,667.55 $1,122,799.93 $26,943,481.69 $11,369.03 $58,119.82 $2,938.99 $9,264.96 $37,307.53 $46,314,725.03 $299,465.14 $46,733,190.50 $73,676,672.19

R:\!CFY1516\Collection Agents Analysis\Collection Agents Analysis CFY2015-16 macro.xlsm

157 of 179



 

 

 
FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS 

CORPORATION 
 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FEBRUARY 27, 2017 
 
  

AGENDA ITEM #6d 
REPORT ON CCOC LEGISLATIVE  COMMITTEE  

158 of 179



 

 

Agenda Item 6d Executive Council Meeting February 27, 2017  

Date: February 27, 2017 

Subject: Agenda Item 6d: Legislative Committee Update 
 
 
Committee Action: 
For informational purposes only. 
 
Overview/Background: 
 
The CCOC Legislative Committee has not met so far this term. However, a meeting is being planned for 
some time in March.  
Actions Taken: 
 
Chair Timmann and Jason Harrell, CCOC Budget and Communications Director, have been monitoring 
legislative activities closely and coordinating with FCCC on legislative requests and responses. CCOC staff 
continues to track bills of interest and provide fiscal impacts upon request. CCOC is also providing 
fiscal/revenue estimates for clerk legislative priorities for the upcoming Session. Chair Timmann will provide 
an overview during the Executive Council meeting and anticipates a more detailed update during a March 
Legislative Committee meeting.  
 
Attachments:  
N/A 
Committee consideration: 
N/A 
 
 
Lead Staff: 
Jason Harrell, CCOC Budget and Communications Director 

159 of 179



 

 

 
FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS 

CORPORATION 
 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FEBRUARY 27, 2017 
 
  

UPDATE ON CCOC ORGANIZATIONAL STUDY 

160 of 179



 

 

Agenda Item 7 Executive Council Meeting February 27, 2017  

Date: February 27, 2017 

Subject: Update on the CCOC Organizational Study 
 
 
Council Action: 
Information purposes.  
 
Overview: 
 
Study Conducted by Evergreen Solutions  
At the November 14th CCOC Executive Council meeting Chair Sharon Bock provided approval from the 
Executive Committee of the need to have an organization study of the Corporation office.  The Committee 
had directed the CCOC staff to seek RFPs from entities that conduct such studies.  .  
 
Result: 
  
The CCOC established a contract with the firm Evergreen Solutions.  Attached is the contract.  Chair Bock 
will provide an update on the progress of the study. 
 
   
 
 
Attachments:   A:  Contract with Evergreen Solutions for CCOC Organizational Study 
 
 

 

 

161 of 179



162 of 179



163 of 179



164 of 179



165 of 179



166 of 179



167 of 179



168 of 179



169 of 179



170 of 179



171 of 179



172 of 179



173 of 179



174 of 179



 

 

 
FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS 

CORPORATION 
 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FEBRUARY 27, 2017 
 
  

UPDATE ON CLERKS’ ROLE IN COLLECTION 

175 of 179



 

 

Agenda Item 8 Executive Council Meeting February 27, 2017  

Date: February 27, 2017 

Subject: Update on Communications with Court on Collections Issue 
 
 
Council Action: 
Information purposes.  
 
Overview: 
  
At the November 14th CCOC Executive Council meeting the Council approved a recommendation that Chair 
Bock provide a letter to the Florida Chief Justice noting the importance of working together on collection 
efforts.  
 
A letter was sent to Chief Justice Labarga on November 28th from Chair Bock.  
 
Result: 
  
Chair Bock and Judge Ficarrotta will provide an update.  (Attached is the letter.)   
 
   
 
 
Attachments:   A:  Letter to Chief Justice Labarga from Chair Bock.  

176 of 179



 

 

Agenda Item 9 Executive Council Meeting February 27, 2017  

Date: February 27, 2017 

Subject: Report on CCOC Trust Fund for CFY 16/17 
 
 
Council Action: 
Direct Budget Committee to examine and revise “Funded” and “Depository” Clerks for current fiscal year 
due to revenue re-projections.  Also provide them authority, on behalf of the Council, to revise the amount 
of dollars to be provided to the Clerks from the Trust Fund for CFY 16/17. 
 
Overview: 
 
Current Situation  
The expected receipt of dollars from “Depository” Clerks and the expected need of dollars for “Funded” 
Clerks is based on the revenue each Clerk projected in June 2016 compared to their approved budget for 
CFY 16/17.  This resulted in a projected monthly amount of $1.5 million coming into the TF from 20 
“Depository” Clerks and the monthly amount of approximately $1.9 million being send to 47 “Funded” 
Clerks from the Trust Fund. (See Attached List.)  
 
Potential Situation 
The Clerk’s when sending to the CCOC their Operational Budgets in January decreased their revenue 
projections for CFY by approximately $7.6 million.  Likewise the State’s Revenue Estimating Conference this 
February lowered the expected revenues for Clerks by over $11 million.   
 
Result: 
  
If less revenues are collected by Clerks, as projected, then it is expected the “Depository” Clerks will have 
less dollars to send to the Trust Fund and the “Funded” Clerks will need additional dollars sent from the 
Trust Fund.  The CCOC staff are currently working with the Department of Revenue to determine both the 
expected revenues coming in to the TF for the next quarter as well as what amounts to be sent out to 
Clerks.  To do this we would need to work with the CCOC Budget Committee and choose a methodology 
and get approval to implement any changes to the current distribution amounts.  
 
 
Attachments:   A:  Current List and Dollars Associated with Depository and Funded Clerks 
   

177 of 179



County

Annual Funded 

Amount

 Monthly Funded  

Amount 

1 Alachua 1,412,669.91$     117,722.49$            

2 Baker 72,887.22$           6,073.93$                

3 Brevard 2,499,595.09$     208,299.59$            

4 Calhoun 247,474.93$        20,622.91$              

5 Charlotte 13,596.16$           1,133.01$                

6 Citrus 28,182.16$           2,348.51$                

7 Desoto 87,036.99$           7,253.08$                

8 Dixie 137,571.28$        11,464.27$              

9 Duval 1,156,761.13$     96,396.76$              

10 Escambia 703,346.80$        58,612.23$              

11 Flagler 302,416.18$        25,201.35$              

12 Franklin 356,574.97$        29,714.58$              

13 Gadsden 162,751.13$        13,562.59$              

14 Gilchrist 293,176.89$        24,431.41$              

15 Glades 88,480.51$           7,373.38$                

16 Gulf 239,125.16$        19,927.10$              

17 Hamilton 49,396.94$           4,116.41$                

18 Hardee 248,312.76$        20,692.73$              

19 Highlands 111,375.48$        9,281.29$                

20 Hillsborough 992,359.09$        82,696.59$              

21 Holmes 39,618.32$           3,301.53$                

22 Jackson 146,999.67$        12,249.97$              

23 Jefferson 4,366.59$             363.88$                   

24 Lafayette 151,944.77$        12,662.06$              

25 Leon 6,267.29$             522.27$                   

26 Levy 337,456.40$        28,121.37$              

27 Liberty 170,448.11$        14,204.01$              

28 Manatee 461,302.89$        38,441.91$              

29 Miami-Dade 3,550,550.03$     295,879.17$            

30 Monroe 476,329.20$        39,694.10$              

31 Nassau 38,426.31$           3,202.19$                

32 Okeechobee 169,137.13$        14,094.76$              

33 Palm Beach 961,750.21$        80,145.85$              

34 Pasco 2,371,037.56$     197,586.46$            

35 Polk 579,354.23$        48,279.52$              

36 Putnam 804,377.97$        67,031.50$              

37 Sarasota 254,791.37$        21,232.61$              

38 St. Johns 311,621.49$        25,968.46$              

39 St. Lucie 203,721.66$        16,976.81$              

40 Sumter 75,580.64$           6,298.39$                

41 Suwannee 171,464.90$        14,288.74$              

42 Taylor 72,514.57$           6,042.88$                

43 Union 256,705.96$        21,392.16$              

44 Volusia 1,609,271.75$     134,105.98$            

45 Wakulla 124,338.21$        10,361.52$              

46 Walton 59,613.54$           4,967.80$                

47 Washington 135,022.93$        11,251.91$              

Total: 22,747,104.49$   1,895,592.04$        

Funded Amount for CFY 1617

Document Prepared by CCOC Staff on 10/06/2016

178 of 179



County

Annual 

Depository 

Amount

 Monthly 

Depository  

Amount 

1 Bay 479,412.80$        39,951.07$         

2 Bradford 333,833.32$        27,819.44$         

3 Broward 3,065,020.86$     255,418.40$      

4 Clay 20,778.66$           1,731.55$           

5 Collier 244,456.23$        20,371.35$         

6 Columbia 213,254.56$        17,771.21$         

7 Hendry 77,999.17$           6,499.93$           

8 Hernando 607,052.40$        50,587.70$         

9 Indian River 184,832.23$        15,402.69$         

10 Lake 394,985.01$        32,915.42$         

11 Lee 2,380,682.35$     198,390.20$      

12 Madison 412,507.12$        34,375.59$         

13 Marion 387,339.94$        32,278.33$         

14 Martin 492,741.01$        41,061.75$         

15 Okaloosa 606,853.75$        50,571.15$         

16 Orange 4,807,840.85$     400,653.40$      

17 Osceola 1,900,431.51$     158,369.29$      

18 Pinellas 494,393.31$        41,199.44$         

19 Santa Rosa 370,846.57$        30,903.88$         

20 Seminole 704,690.71$        58,724.23$         

Total: 18,179,952.35$   1,514,996.03$   

Depository Amount for CFY 1617

Document Prepared by CCOC Staff on 10/06/2016

179 of 179


	00a DraftAgendaExecutiveCouncilMeetingFebruary272017
	01 Cover Sheet Agenda 1
	01 MEMO  Swearing in of New EC Members
	01a Attachment Clerks Ballot
	01b Attachment CPA Election Results
	02 Cover Sheet Agenda 2
	02 Minutes from November 14 2016 Executive Council meeting
	03a  Cover Sheet Agenda 3a
	03a Attachment CCOC Financial Statement 9.30.16 -Final
	03b Attachment CFY 16-17 Monthly Financial Report
	03b Cover Sheet Agenda 3b
	05 Cover Sheet Agenda 5
	05 MEMO Status of Peer Group Review Study
	05a Attachment - email to all clerks
	05b Attachment - MEMO from Chair Butterfield to Clerks
	05c attachment Peer Group PPT
	06a Cover Sheet Agenda 6a
	06a MEMO Executive Committee Reporta
	06b Cover Sheet Agenda 6b
	06b MEMO Budget Committee Report
	06b1 - Attachment Agenda BC 120716
	06b2 Attachment Draft Summary BC Meeting Minutes 120716
	06b3 Attachment JAC Schedule VIIb Reduction
	06b4 Attachment JAC Budget Reduction Proposal Letter
	06b5 Attachment DRAFT CFY2017-18 Budget Timeline
	06b6 Attachment Final Presentation for Senate Appropriations 011207
	06b7 Attachment RECArticleVscheduleforclerks
	06c Cover Sheet Agenda 6c
	06c MEMO PIE Report
	06c1 Attachment Final Quarter 4 CAP
	1.1 Cover - 4th Quarter.pdf
	1.2 Quarter 4 Table of Contents
	1.3 4th Quarter
	1.4 Quarter 4 Report Collections
	1.5 Quarter 4 timeliness
	1.6 Quarter 4 Report Jury
	1.7 Quarter 4 Collections App
	1.8 Drug  App
	1.9 Time 1 App
	10.0 Time 2 App
	11.0 External App
	12.0 Jury App

	06c2 Attachment CFY 1516 Collection Agents Analysis
	06d Cover Sheet Agenda 6d
	06d MEMO Legislative Committee Update
	07 Cover Sheet Agenda 7
	07 MEMO CCOC Organizational Study
	07a Attachment Evergreen Solutions contract
	08 Attachment Letter to Chief Justice
	08 Cover Sheet Agenda 8
	08 MEMO Collections Issuea
	09 MEMO  CCOC Trust Fund
	09a Attachment Current Funded and Depository Clerks



